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PRESS:

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for March 10th is now convened. The time is 1:40. At this time
the Chair would like to introduce the Members that are here this afternoon,
we do have Member Mateo, Anderson, Johnson, Medeiros, Molina and
Victorino. Excused at this time are Members Baisa as well as Member
Hokama. Representing the Administration personnel we do have our
Finance Director Kalbert Young and representing the Deputy, Corporation
Counsel is our First Deputy Corporation Counsel Tracy Fujita Villarosa.
Supporting the Committee this afternoon we do have Lance Taguchi as
well as Michael Geers, both our Legislative Analyst and our Committee
Secretary Yvette Bouthillier.

ITEM NO. 94:

AMENDING THE FY 2008 BUDGET (LANAI
LANDFILL
STORM
WATER
SYSTEM
RECONSTRUCTION) (c.e. No. 08-36)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, before we take up public testimony the Chair
would like to notify the Members that for our third item which is BF -94
we're going to, and BF-94 is amending the Fiscal Year 2008 Budget Lanai
Landfill Storm Water System Reconstruction. The Chair will be deferring
that item to a future date. And it's going to be heard during our budget
session but I haven't set a date yet and the reason why for the deferral is
that Staff hasn't received any amendment to the proposed bill. And, I
understand that Administration is also currently working on that. So your
Chair will be deferring that particular item.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
ACTION:

DEFER no discussion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. This afternoon we do have several items on
the agenda but before we go into the agenda items the Chair have a
number of people that have come to these chambers to provide public
testimony. For those of you that are providing public testimony the Chair
will give you three minutes to provide, provide you the opportunity to give
us your testimony and then one minute to conclude after the first three
minutes. If you need additional time after the first three minutes you can
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come back again once everybody have provided their testimony this
afternoon. At this time the Chair would like to request that the members
of the gallery as well as the people on, the Council Members that are on
this floor to put your cell phone on the silent mode or if you can turn it off
as not to interrupt the deliberations this afternoon. So with that, Members,
we do have a number of testifiers on BF Item 2 which is the CDBG
program. So at this time the Chair would like to call, first up John
Blumer-Buell from Hana. John, good afternoon .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla, and Budget and
Finance Committee Members and members from the community at large
and Hana community members. My name is John Blumer-Buell I'm
going to testify on BF-2 the resolution part of that. Aloha, Chair
Pontanilla, and, Council Members, I request the resolution be revised to
remove proposed project No.2 titled Hana Health and Nutrition Center in
the amount of $300,000. The posted meeting agenda status ofBS-2 [sic}
states the Budget and Finance Committee "May consider whether to
recommend adoption of the proposed resolution with or without
revisions." Please revise the resolution to exclude the request from Hana
Health for the following reasons; one, the Community Development Block
Grant proposal by Hana Health does not meet the model of community as
defined by Hawaii State Legislative Act 263. To the Hana community, the
Community Development Block Grant proposal by Hana Health does not
meet the community model as defined by the Hana community generated
plan, "Ho'o Ku'i Kahi" on which Act 263 was based. Ho'o Ku'i Kahi
states on page 12, No.4, "The Board of Directors of the nonprofit
organization would be elected by the residents of the Hana District,
Keanae to Kaupo." The community membership of nearly 300 was
secretly abolished without membership consent. Hana Health is no longer
a community organization. Ho'o Ku'i Kahi states on page 25, under
community linkage, "Post meeting's agenda, minutes. Send agendas and
minutes to Kaupo, Keanae, Wailua, Kipahulu." And, "Establish feedback
methods, suggestion boxes, office, periodic community meetings." There
are no posted agendas, minutes or periodic community meetings.
The Maui News of May 17,2004 included the following as part ofa front
page story titled "Need for dialysis in Hana a flash point. But even
Council Member Robert Carroll, who led the effort ten years ago to
establish the community health center, has been kept out of the loop . You
can't meet with the board, there's no avenue really to sit down with them
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to address concerns," said Carroll, who was turned away when he asked to
confer with the board about dialysis. "I couldn't even petition the board
for land for a dialysis facility. The meetings are closed," he said. A
Community Development Block Grant should include, not exclude the
community.
The proposed project is part of the larger 26 to $52 million proposal for a
Hana Community Health and Wellness Village, you have the map. I'll
finish in four. The proposed project, which includes the nutrition center,
does not have the required zoning. The zoning requests have been
received by the Maui County Land Use Committee. In my opinion, it is
premature to consider any funding requests unless zoning entitlements are
first secured. If the Budget and Finance Committee were to authorize
funding the proposed project before there are zoning entitlements, the
Committee Members would create the impression they have already, they
already support zoning for the proposed project before the required public
hearing process. It should, it should be noted that hundreds of community
members are on record as opposing the zoning request for the Hana
Community Health and Wellness Village and have requested
reinstatement of the community elected board of directors.
MR. GEERS: Four minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I'll finish there. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell. Members, any questions
for the testifier at this time? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Blumer-Buell,
thank you for being here this afternoon. Can you expand a little bit on the
Hawaii State Legislative Act 263 as it relates to this?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yes. The, the Hana Medical Center which you're
aware it was the State owned and operated facility in 1993. The State was
roughly spending about a million and a half dollars a year on that and in
1993 public health nurse Kathleen Street the Hana Public Health Nurse
and a representative from the public, from the Health Department started
holding some workshops in Hana anticipating that the State may turn the
facility over to the community. I helped facilitate those meetings in 1993,
in 1995 we had a, a large community meeting with hundreds of people
there and the community endorsed a, a, the Ho'o Ku'i Kahi the Hana
Health Committee report which was signed by Harry Hasegawa. I totally
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agreed with that report. That report was sent to Dr. Maiki(?) and was the
basis for turning the Hana, the Hana Health Center over to the Hana
community.
In 1996 Legislative Act 263 was passed and in the enabling legislation it
references Ho'o Ku'i Kahi which was the community generated report
signed by Harry Hasegawa. That report was clear and unambiguous, the, I
read parts of it but the, the model for that was chosen by the community
and the State was for the, the community to have a nonprofit organization
with a community elected board of directors. And we did have a
community elected board of directors. The first meeting was in 1996,
there was three meetings in 1997, they were all deferred or cancelled and
in 1998 the existing board through a legal loophole that no one has
bothered to challenge at this point privatized the center and abolished the
membership so that, the membership without even notifying the
membership. So that is a brief history of Act 263, it should be noted that
after this happened the State Legislature plugged that legal loophole. You
can no longer abolish a community membership organization in this State
without a community membership meeting and their consent.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Does, does the Hawaii State Legislative Act
of 263 which was from 1996, does it still play any jurisdiction over the
Hana Health Center?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Well it was the enabling legislation that enabled it to
come to a community nonprofit which has now been privatized and I think
it has a strong moral and ethical basis on which it should override even
legalities. The community made a strong commitment to work together
and produce this report, Ho'o Ku'i Kahi and what has happened since then
is just not right, not pono, it's not ethical. And definitely what happened
the privatization definitely people never have agreed to the transfer from
the State if they thought this kind of thing would have happened. There
are still solutions to resolve all this by the way so.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Excuse me. Member Medeiros, if you can keep your
questions to the CDBG program and don't stray to Act 63 [sic]. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And I think
these points were brought up to see if indeed Hana Health has a valid
application for the CDBG funds. And so with that I think I'll have my
other questions asked when we have Carol Gentz from CDBG come forth.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And mahalo, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
testifier? Member Johnson.

Members, any more questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, John. And you're aware that when we
get the CDBG information it's all programmed and so basically we're just
looking at it as one package because of previous issues that had arisen so
it's either up or down. So you're saying that we should vote no on
everything?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: That is, in my opinion, that is a misstatement of fact
what you just said and it does not agree with what your agenda states.
Your meeting agenda, it's right on there under status says, status, it's at
the bottom of the paper I have it, if you don't. Status ofBF-52 states the
Budget and Finance Committee, "May consider whether to recommend
adoption of the proposed resolution with or without revisions." Your
agenda says you are allowed to make revisions today and that what has
been represented to the public. So it is not, at this point it is not, it is not
too late to revise this budget, that was what the intent was, there are a
number of alternatives that would just move up in the thing, in, in the
priority list. And it would be as simple as that. There's the $900,000 of
proposals waiting in the wings that, I've looked at those they're more
worthy than this. So I have a ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I will, I will ask Corporation
Counsel but in the past this was one of the things that we had to do when
we were audited to depoliticize so I hope you understand that.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yeah, no. Very briefly I had protested the grant in
2004 and you said exactly the same thing, at that point it was later in the
process and I accepted your word for it. But the County is putting itself
and all of its future applicants at risk by, by doing this kind of thing. Its
better to take this out and consider it, if they ever get the zoning. They
don't have the zoning right now. And I'd just like to point out that there is
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a six page complaint filed with the Administration which you've all gotten
regarding that 2004 CDBG grant. And as you know the County's rating
on these grants was, was, was near the bottom in 2004 and you're just
going to, I think, exacerbate the problem.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Corporation Counsel.

I appreciate your comments and we'll ask

MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks. Thanks very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
testifier? Member Anderson.

Members, any more questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Blumer-Buell, thank you for being here
and for supplying all this information. The $300,000 that would be in
addition to how much they received in 2004?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: One of the issues in the complaint was I asked them
the, the Mayor has agreed to supply that information, did they actually get
the $146,000 in 2004. It appears they did, I'm sure Cheryl Vosconcellos
or Harry Hasegawa could answer that question. I don't know that for sure.
But the, the Mayor will answer that, they've had drawings and so forth
done so I would just be assuming that they did get that grant.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so this site plan that you've given us,
Hana Community Health and Wellness Center. Is this what was
envisioned by Ho'o Ku'i Kahi and in, in their report?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Not, not at all. And the, let me tell you what's
happened is since things have gone really wrong with this, we now have a,
a great many services being duplicated in Hana. Ho'o Ku'i Kahi called
for Hui No Ke Ola Pono, the Hawaiian Health Organization to have their
own center on the 12 acres. The State bought an additional ten acres so
we could fulfill that vision. So Hui No Ke Ola Pono was going to have
their own center. Ohana Makamae which is a drug prevention and
intervention program, outstanding, one of Hana's best programs, they
were going to have their own center on there. The public health nurse was
going to have her own facility there. And the, the basic medical primary
healthcare services would be improved with Hui No Ke Ola Pono was
going to share, for example, x-ray and the pharmacy with, with the

- 8-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 10,2008

community at large. And so that also included kupuna housing and, a lot
of kupuna housing. And so this vision does not match up with that at all
as you all have a copy of the 1995 report which Harry Hasegawa signed.
And I still think that is what's in the best interest of the community and
what can still be achieved if people would start working together.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: You're welcome. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Alan Pascua. Alan is
from the Department of Fire Control. Assistant Chief Alan Pascua.
MR. PASCUA: Thank you. Members of the Council, Chair, thank you for
having us this afternoon. Thanks to the efforts of Captain of the Hazmat
Ten Louis Romero and Fire Fighter 1 of Engine 3 Lahaina Reza Azman.
The Maui Fire Department has submitted a CDBG application for
assistance in funding of fire tanker apparatus and additional fire
equipment. This particular tanker will be designed with a 2,000 gallon
water tank, all-wheel drive capability to help negotiate off road or semipaved road conditions. And it would also be equipped with a compressed
air foam system to extend available water supply for extinguishment in
remote areas that usually do not have adequate water supply or no water
supply at all. With Hana being a stand alone district, the addition of a
tanker will improve fire response capabilities by having an additional
apparatus at fire incidents. This apparatus will allow the Hana MFD
personnel to be more aggressive in approaching the fire line in wild land
fire incidents. Having that ability to get close to any type of fire is key to
quick extinguishment of any fire incident.
The long term benefits of this project will be enhanced fire coverage for
Hana community, the critical infrastructure in Hana will be better
protected, and Maui island as a whole will potentially be better served
with a possible reduction of additional Fire Department resources having
to be relocated or transported to be utilized in Hana to assist with these
large wild land fires. Also this new tanker will allow the Hana crews to
more effectively mitigate wild land fires in the early stages and prevent the
development of extended operation. With the enhanced suppression
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capabilities and proper use and maintenance a tanker will, with off road
capability and improved fire suppression equipment will provide
tremendous long term benefits for the Hana community and the County of
Maui Fire Department and Public Safety. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Assistant
Chief Pascua? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Assistant Chief
Pascua, thank you for your information and for your testimony. Is this a
replacement tanker or is it an expansion equipment?
MR. P ASCU A: It is an expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And it's a 2,000 gallon tanker?
MR. PASCUA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And all-wheel drive. Now I'm assuming it's
a diesel engine operated equipment.
MR. P ASCU A: Chair, Councilman Medeiros, if I may defer those technical
questions to the people who have written out the grant. But just real
quickly, yes it will be diesel.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So does the Hana Fire Station have diesel
tanks on the property to fuel these kinds of equipment?
MR. PASCUA: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. The next thing and, and if you want
to defer it to someone else fine. But does this tanker have draft
capabilities?
MR. PASCUA: That's one of the specifications that Captain Romero has written
up and if I may again defer those technical questions to him.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman-MR. P ASCU A: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --with your approval.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Councilmember Medeiros, we do have a number of fire
personnel here. In fact some of them will be testifying and I'm sure that
one of them will be the guy that probably did the specifications for the
Fire Department. So if you have any more questions for Assistant Chief
Pascua, if not then I'll let Assistant Chief Pascua, you know, I'll let him
go and then we'll call on the next fire personnel.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I, yeah I believe that's all the
questions I have for Assistant Chief Pascua. Thank you for your
information.
MR. P ASCU A: Thank you, Councilman. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Assistant
Chief? Chief.. .Mr. Mateo.
MR. PASCUA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good, good afternoon.
MR. P ASCU A: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: In your discussion with CDBG had, had they
provided you assurances that the additional balance for the truck is
something that they had given you assurances of?
MR. P ASCU A: Those assurances were discussed with again, with Captain
Romero and he can give you a lot of detail behind the application process
and those discussions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman. I'll wait.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Thank you,
Chief.
MR. PASCUA: Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier I have here is Reza Azman, he too is
from the Maui Fire Department and Fire, or Public Safety. Is he here?
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MR. AZMAN: Good afternoon, Chairman, all Council Members. Just like to
reiterate everything that Chief has already said and just open it up to
questions. If you have any questions for me I'll try and answer them as
best as I can.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fire Fighter Azman, are you the technical person that
created the specifications?
MR. AZMAN: I, I did help out. I had a hand in that, Captain Romero was the
main person in charge.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MR. AZMAN: He probably would have the best answers for any inquiries that
you guys would have.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Members, any questions for this Fire Fighter?
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah. If you could
answer the question whether this tanker has the capability of drafting?
MR. AZMAN: I believe the tanker, yes it will have the capability of drafting.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay.
And do you know in the
specifications if was made additional higher as far as ground clearance for
the land topography in the Hana region?
MR. AZMAN: That answer I would have to pass off to Captain Romero.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
questions for the Fire Fighter Azman at this time? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MR. AZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next person up is HazMat Captain Lui Romero.
MR. ROMERO: Aloha everybody, Council Chair, Council Members. Thank you
for allowing us to testify. I just want to reinforce what Chief Pascua
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mentioned earlier. I'd like to acknowledge Reza for working hard on this
grant. He just joined our grants team recently, I've been a member of the
grants team for the last six years so, when, as soon as he volunteered I
kind of threw him in, right into the fire. And, yes, we worked it, we work
in partnership to submit this application. As you know the Hana
community is a stand alone station, meaning it's remote, a minimum of
four personnel is responsible for the entire Hana District extending from
on the Paia or Haiku side it's Hanamanu Bay that's Kailua side, yeah.
And on the Kaupo side it's, their boundary is Manawainui Bridge and that
boundary they, they bridge it up with Kula Fire Station on the other side,
Kahului side.
But, you know, the roads are really bad, they're repamng the roads
currently and the farthest they're allowed to go right now is Lelekea, that
big bay over there. You know, so because they're a stand alone station
and these two areas that I mentioned, their boundaries, it takes about an
hour each way, in fact the Kaupo side even longer, yeah, to respond to a
fire. So our whole goal as far as this CDBG project was having the
minimum amount of manpower, give them superior fire equipment, yeah,
so that the minimum amount of manpower could do the maximum amount
of work. Because backup engines from Paia, on the Kula side, Kula Fire
Station, our helicopters from Kahului, they're about one to two hours
away before they can provide, provide the Hana personnel with any
assistance. So having them have superior fire equipment, you know, make
it, it will make them more capable of a more aggressive fire attack. And
that was the whole goal in requesting funding for this tanker.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ROMERO: Any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Medeiros.

Members, any questions for the Captain? Member

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. You referred to the,
the staffing of the Hana Fire Station as being four persons. Is that the total
amount including the captain or is that with any vacancies? Because I
thought the station had a five person crew.
MR. ROMERO: Yeah. We have a five person crew but we have a four man
minimum. We allow our personnel to take sick leave and vacations but
we cannot go below four --
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. ROMERO: --to meet our NFPA and OSHA standards for two in and two
out -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MR. ROMERO: --requirement.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And when you say if somebody takes some
kind ofleave then you're down to a minimum of four persons.
MR. ROMERO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is there a major station that replaces that
missing person like, you know, the Wailuku station used to be that station,
I don't know if it still is.
MR. ROMERO: Yeah. It, it where, wherever the manpower shortage is and it, it,
we don't designate any station as the fill in station. Wherever has, they,
they have a five man crew and they can spare the extra guy we relocate
them to Hana if we need to.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Are you the technical person that I
can ask some technical questions?
MR. ROMERO: Oh yeah, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So can you answer the question about
the additional clearance on the equipment?
MR. ROMERO: The, the design clearance, the design height, excuse me, for the,
this fire tanker is ten feet, six inches. Which is slightly taller than the
truck that they have there now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. What about the ground clearance to
the bottom of the chassis?
MR. ROMERO: The, the ground clearance we, we tried to get better ground
clearance and we feel that this tanker, this all road capability tanker is the
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one best suited for Hana. It has more clearance than the fire truck has that
is assigned to Hana right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And your radio capabilities when you
extend to the furthest areas of the district, are you still in radio contact?
MR. ROMERO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And you mentioned Manawainui
Bridge as being one end of the district that the Hana Fire Station responds
to. I believe Kaupo has two Manawainui Bridges, one close to Mokulau
area and the other one where they repaired because of the earthquake. So
which one are you speaking of?
MR. ROMERO: It's the one they're repairing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: For the earthquake -MR. ROMERO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mr. Chairman.

--damage?

Okay.

Okay.

Mahalo,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Again, you know, the
police, police ... Fire Department will be here during the discussion period.
So if you have any more questions at that time please ask your questions.
Thank you again, Captain Romero.
MR. ROMERO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Eric Yamashige, Deputy Director
County ofMaui Water Supply. I saw you this morning.
MR. Y AMASHIGE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members. I must be a glutton for
punishment. ... (end of tape IA) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's your lucky day.
MR. Y AMASHIGE: It's my lucky day. Thank you.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Yeah. His lucky day. Go ahead, Eric.
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MR. Y AMASHIGE: I'm here to testify on item No.2 the CDBG program. I am
not here to speak on any particular program although we do have an
application recommended for funding. And that being said I do want to
recognize Jacky Takakura for putting this application together. Excuse
me. A couple years ago I had the opportunity to participate on the review
committee of this program. So I'm here to really support all of the
recommendations. The CDBG staff makes a great effort in educating all
of the applicants prior to the application process. They work hard in
screening the applications before it goes to the committee and then the
committee spends, I can testify hours reviewing these applications,
evaluating them and scoring them both individually and collectively. So I
am simply here to support the recommendations to maximize the benefit
of the program to our low and moderate income areas. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
If not, thank you again, Eric. I note that you have an item in that request
so thank you for sharing your knowledge on, you know, regarding the
CDBG program. Thank you.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next person to testify is Patricia Crawford.
MS. CRAWFORD: Good afternoon, Councilmen, and, Members.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good afternoon.
MS. CRAWFORD: My name is Patricia Pu Crawford, I am a mother and
grandmother who lives in Hana. I have sat under the tent with other
kupunas eating, talking story and playing bingo. It's a really good
program for the seniors but it's also sad that we have to continue to have
our program in these conditions. Please support Hana Health by passing a
building development. We need a place where we, where we are inside,
safe from the wind and rain and not too much sun. Some of us are in
wheel chairs and the outside is uncomfortable and unsafe. Some of them
lean on picnic tables when others are eating, in other words we need,
really need a safe handicap area in a portion of the building for the seniors
is in great need. The staff are the best caring and knowledgeable about
their duties to keep us happy and well fed. Mahalo for your time.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Crawford. Members, any questions for
the testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Kupuna Crawford,
thank you for coming all the way out here and testifying. Do you have
opportunities to also enjoy the programs at the Hale Hulu Mamo, the other
senior center?
MS. CRAWFORD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you also go there?
MS. CRAWFORD: No, I don't. But I know others do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see, so most of your activities are at the
Hana Health?
MS. CRAWFORD: And at Kaunoa Health Center too.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Out on this side?
MS. CRAWFORD: No, out in Hana there's a Kaunoa Health-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.
MS. CRAWFORD: --we get together there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo for your testimony, Kupuna
Crawford.
MS. CRAWFORD: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
questions? If not, again thank you very much. The next testifier is
Ronald S. Lecker.
MR. LECKER: Chairman, and the County Council, aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Aloha.
MR. LECKER: I recently attended a, a health fair and had my blood pressure and
cholesterol checked. It is important for us to stay healthy. I would like to
ask you to take a few minutes to hear my request. For years I have heard
how Hana Health has continued to ask your approval in building this
nutrition center. It is much needed for the program today. I recently saw
the news letter that show the kupunas still having their program under a
tent with plastic tables, dirt and a hard top canvas for their program. This
is not good. They need a building that they can sit, relax and enjoy each
others company. I present my request to you today in hope that you will
approve and support this building development. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Lecker.
MR. LECKER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Following Mr. Lecker is Lucille Lecker.
MS. LECKER: Aloha, County Council Members.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
MS. LECKER: My name is Lucille Lecker. I was born and raised here in Hana.
I share with you my heart felt experience as an employee and a
community outreach worker at Hana Health for the pat seven and a half
years. I share with you why I support the nutrition center at Hana Health.
The programs that now exist are under a 20x30 tent with plastic picnic
tables and a tarp on one side of the tent to block the wind and rain. It has
been this way for years. With the amount of tropical storm, strong winds
and rain, and even power outage we have experienced here in Hana last
year and even this year it has been a challenge for the staff at Hana Health
to make our kupunas feel comfortable even under the limited amount of
space and structure they have. Our Maia-E program are held Monday,
Wednesday and Fridays from 10:00 in the morning to noon with food, arts
and crafts, puzzles, bingo or just sitting around talking story. Our kupunas
come and enjoy the company of each other. We have a responsibility as
staff and community members to malama our kupuna. They deserve a
much better place to sit down, talk story and eat.
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Our fitness program also exists under a tent with gravel and rubber mats as
their platform. To see the persistence of the community people to still
want to exercise and have a program even under the conditions that it has
been for years shows you that they are dedicated to exercising, eating
healthy and living a healthy life. Therefore it is our duty to support the
programs that provide our communities with a positive impact that affects
their health. As you may know not all local people stand in front of a
committee and share their manao. Even for me I am shaking. I hope that
you will hear the voices of the community of Hana through the letters that
will be presented to you. And by seeing them here with us today they may
not stand to talk but them being here hopefully it'll show their support in
this program. Thank you for taking the time out of your busy schedule to
hear the voices of East Maui. And I want to add, my dad who just came
up and spoke to you before, he had his blood pressure checked and every
year he does for the past four years at the Hui Health Fair. So I would like
to thank you guys again for this time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Lecker. Members, any questions for
the testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Lecker, thank
you for being here, coming all the way from Hana to testify. And, and you
did a fine job of testifying, you didn't look nervous at all. On the Maia-E
program which I'm assuming is, is that the meals program -MS. LECKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --for the kupuna?
MS. LECKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Are the meals prepared up there at
that facility?
MS. LECKER: It is prepared in the original cottage setting that was there when
the old Hana Medical Center was, so it's in a very small area. They
prepare the meals on a plastic table.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see and then they're served to the kupuna
under the tent that you described?
MS. LECKER: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So in the meantime, you may not be
able to answer this but I just want to ask you anyway. In the meantime
before there's any new facilities constructed do you think there's a good
possibility that the kupuna could go to the Old Hana School cafeteria
where they would be able to enjoy their meals in, in a building?
MS. LECKER: I believe that we need to malama the kupunas where they are now
and not have them be transported to different sites. Because then we will
be giving them the wrong vision of what we are trying to provide for them
in Hana. Knowing that they can have a medical facility, the medics are
right there and the Fire Department which comes over and do vital signs
for them, they are only a walk away. Many come for their doctor's
appointment first and then walk in the back to the, to the kupuna program.
So I think for the past five years they have been at Hana Health under the
tent, to have them to move to another structural place would be giving
them another move which we are trying to prevent that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and thank you for your
responses. And certainly, you know, we all believe the same thing that as
far as the kupuna we want to provide them the best kind of programs and
services and facilities. And I agree with you on that. So thank you for
your testimony this afternoon.
MS. LECKER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, again thank you very much -MS. LECKER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for coming up. The next testifier is John Kahalehoe.
MR. KAHALEHOE: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Council
Members. I'm here to testify in support of the CDBG that we have
proposed to you. And I'm also here to ask that in your support in funding
the, the grant that we've proposed.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at
this time? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Kahalehoe,
thank you for coming out to testify. Do you have any connection with
Hana Health? Do you work for them or are you testifying just as an
individual?
MR. KAHALEHOE: I don't have any connection with Hana Health except that
I'm the board member, I'm the president of the board. But I don't work
for Hana Health.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Oh, you're the president of the board
of directors for Hana Health?
MR. KAHALEHOE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
testimony.

I see.

Okay.

Well thank you for your

MR. KAHALEHOE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
members are on your board?

Yeah.

Could you tell me how many

MR. KAHALEHOE: Right now we do have eight members on the board.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how were they elected?
MR. KAHALEHOE: They were elected by the board.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So there was no community involvement in
electing the board?
MR. KAHALEHOE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you again for testifying.
MR. KAHALEHOE: You're welcome, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier and the last testifier that signed up
prior to the meeting is Samuel Kalalau III.
MR. KALALAU: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla, Councilman Victorino,
Councilman Molina, Councilman Medeiros, Councilwoman Johnson,
Councilwoman Anderson, and Councilman Mateo. Thank you for giving
me this moment. I'm going to testify on two things, first of all I want to
testify on the expansion equipment for the Hana Fire Station. I'm familiar
with the apparatus and the Hana Fire Station. I just retired from the
Highways Department as a highway supervisor and at times in Hana I did
drive the water tanker to support the firemen at some fire sites. And, and I
really believe that this expansion equipment is very important for Hana,
not only because it is rural but we are having a lot of new citizens moving
into Hana and we're getting McMansions back off the highway that I
hope, you know, they're building houses. I know we all fire insurance so,
but anyway Hana is getting ready to build affordable housing and I also
feel that this expansion equipment is very important to support the housing
projects that would be coming up in Hana.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. KALALAU: Thank you. Okay. I'm here also on the CDBG item for the
Hana Health. I'm in support of the CDBG grant to develop the nutrition
center which is the kitchen. In our last community meeting that we had in
Hana, it was voiced by the community as one of the first priorities was to
have the kitchen first and the second priority was for senior housing,
senior care housing project. The kitchen that they're using right now it's,
you know, I, I believe it's almost, maybe almost 70 years old. You know,
Hana is growing, Hana is changing, you know, our hospital went from the
name Hana Hospital to Hana Health to Hana Community Health Center to,
and now it's Hana Health. I, I believe that it's a better name because it's,
it's open to the entire moku of the East Maui instead of just the Hana
community. Because we need to involve Keanae to Kaupo, they're,
they're, they're part of the moku. If, if, if we got to use names as people
were saying that, you know, it was a community thing we, we had
questions about Act 263.
I think a lot of the concerns that
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Mr. Blumer-Buell brought up is ten years old and a lot of the concerns has
been addressed already by the State government being that it's a State
property, being that the nonprofit organizations was formed and created by
the State of Hawaii. Yes, I was involved in a lot of the workshops in
creating this nonprofit organization in Hana myself.
You know, I know, I know a lot of people are not happy with what
happened but a lot of good things are happening. I'm glad Lucille
answered Mr. Medeiros question real well. You know, it's not, it's not
about moving kupunas or senior citizens to different areas when you
already have an area. Whether, whether the old cafeteria is the facility to
where we can, it's not only handling the daily meals and we're not
duplicating anybody else's program down there in Hana. They talked
about the senior center up at the old school, Hale Hulu Mamo, we're not
duplicating them. It's a whole total different project.
We're, they also talked about the other, other organizations in Hana like
Hui No Ke Ola Pono, Hui No Ke Ola Pono and, and the Health Center
was in agreement in, in trying to do some programs together. It's changed,
a lot of the people that is upset and that John Blumer-Buell is talking about
is past employees at the Health Center who was most of the time is bad
mouthing the Health Center. I don't know why, you know, people should
be positive, they should look forward, things are changing. I mean we
have a lot of old kupunas, we need to take care of them. We talk about
taking care of our kupunas this is the perfect opportunity. This is for
them. And I ask you for your support, each and everyone of you. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kalalau. Members, any questions for
the testifier? Member Medeiros followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Kalalau, thank
you for being here and for testifying and for providing information. I, I
don't think there was any question about duplicating programs, I don't
think, I didn't hear any question about that. We're, we're ...
MR. KALALAU: Mr. Blumer-Buell brought 'em up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh.
was ...

Okay. I'm, I'm sorry. I thought it

MR. KALALAU: Yeah. Yeah. It wasn't from the Council, it was--
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KALALAU: --from Mr. Blumer-Buell.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh. All right. Thank you. Do you have any
professional relationship with Hana Health or are you testifying as an
individual?
MR. KALALAU: I'm kind of testifying as an individual but I'm involved in
another project that they have which is Hana Fresh, the organic farm.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And what's, what's your position?
MR. KALALAU: I part time work on that farm and I basically try to do the, I
guess, I guess the special crops that we're doing on that farm.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And so as far as the kupuna which we
certainly all, you know, try to take care of and provide programs and
services as much as money will allow. So you don't think that in the
interim of waiting for construction of a facility where they would be
housed out of the weather that it wouldn't be a consideration to have them
use another facility until that happens?
MR. KALALAU: Well the, the other part that we got to look at if, you know, if,
if you say we're, we're, I don't know if it's a certified area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You're speaking about the ...
MR. KALALAU: You know, the old cafeteria.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. The kitchen is, is a health approved
kitchen?
MR. KALALAU: You see, I'm not, I'm not familiar with that, with that building.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KALALAU: But I think what, what Lucille was saying is real important.
My parents, my parents used this lunch and home meal, they also do home
deliveries to the seniors and the care seniors that their meals are being
delivered. You know, so --
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KALALAU: --I think they gotta work, you gotta work out of there and, and
that's, and that's the place, you know, they've, they've known to come
there and we also support, supply transportation to bring the seniors there.
And I think we also help support, transport some of the seniors from Hale
Hulu Mamo to the lunch, to the luncheon.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So Hana Health has their own transportation
equipment or-MR. KALALAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --vans ...
MR. KALALAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

Mahalo, Mr. Kalalau.

Mahalo,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you -MR. KALALAU: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Medeiros. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Kalalau, thank you
for being here. Of course we all support the kupuna and whatever can be
done to make their lives easier. But I'm looking at this site plan and, you
know, I see a gift shop, a reception area for guests. You know, aside from
the senior housing and the nutrition center and a restaurant I see a gift and
reception center, I see a conference center, I see administrative offices, I
see a fitness studio, I see a swimming pool, a healing center, childcare
facilities and numerous guest cottages and employee housing. But yet the
Health Center building is still the same as it's always been. So I'm
wondering really what is the ...
MR. KALALAU: Can, can you tell me, can you tell me what year that plan is?
Because there's been numerous changes on 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't see any date on it.
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MR. KALALAU: And then, and then what you can do is address that question to
the executive director.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're telling me that all of these things
I just called out are not part of the plan anymore?
MR. KALALAU: I, I cannot tell you for sure. I cannot answer that for sure
because I know there's been major changes on 'em because the
community in our public hearings, they had their voice and so we made
changes to, you know, to prioritize what the community wanted in, in the
numerous community meetings that we had.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
know?

And when was that last done? Do you

MR. KALALAU: I think it was last year the last meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so there's a plan since last year?
MR. KALALAU: A revised one probably.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. KALALAU: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any more
questions for the testifier? Again, thank you very much -MR. KALALAU: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Kalalau. Members, we do have one more testifier
that signed up before, or after the meeting had started. I just want to tell
the next testifier that you have three minutes to testify, you don't have any
one minute to conclude. So it's three minutes. So at this time the Chair
would like to call on Harry Hasegawa. And, Members, the Chair would
like to recognize Member Baisa. Thank you for coming.
MR. HASEGAWA: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council. I'm Harry
Hasegawa, I'm come from Hana. And I'm also a member of the board.
I'd like to ask your support for this CDBG grant for the nutrition center.
Right now as the previous testifiers have said that they are working out of
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an old nurses residence and converted that into, part of it into a IOxlO
kitchen facility. And that facility is used to service the meals to the shut
ins and we go all the way out to Keanae and they go out to Kipahulu. And
they also serve the meals to the kupuna luncheon program and also the
Hulu Mamo Senior Center. So it's a, a thing that's not a duplication.
Because MEO has one too that works out of the Hana School cafeteria.
But they go I think on days that we're not doing or let's do it the other way
around, we're not doing the days that they're doing. So the nutrition
center is a real service for the community. Now it is old, I went in there
and maybe I shouldn't even say this the Sanitation Department might be
after us but there's a hole in the floor in, in, in the, in the bathroom. And,
and, you know, we got to, we got to get going in getting this thing
repaired. The nutrition center is geared so that it will service, it'll have a
community kitchen and I think that's a real community benefit because
there's a community kitchen in where people can upgrade their little
businesses around Hana, around the Hana road. And maybe be in
compliance then. Also this is an incubator for people who might want to
get some businesses going. It takes quite a bit of investment to have your
own kitchen, but here's one that you can work with and provide whatever,
whatever product you have. And if, if we somehow give the opportunity
to people to do something, have the equipment ready for them, who knows
who will come to that field and I think the nutrition center provides that
service, that opportunity. I have here a report from the Hana Health, this
IS ...

MR. GEERS: Three minutes. Three minutes.
MR. HASEGAWA: Oh boy.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hasegawa, for providing us with your
testimony. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
And,
Mr. Hasegawa, thank you for being here, coming all the way out. You
know, you're somebody in the community I've always respected and still
do. How long have you been with Hana Health? I know it has gone
through an evolution of name changes. But as the facility that sits there
today, how long have you been with that facility and that organization?
MR. HASEGAWA: I, I've been there since the inception.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And when, when was that?
MR. HASEGAWA: Exactly what date, I'm not too sure. But it was, must be
about seven or eight years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. And you said you're a board
member now?
MR. HASEGAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, okay. So as far as the, you mentioned
that the nutrition center which would include a certified kitchen -MR. HASEGAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --would also invite small businesses in there
to I guess prepare meals for their businesses. So that, that would mean
that these small businesses would pay a fee to use the kitchen?
MR. HASEGAWA: Probably a nominal fee.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And then they'd be able to sell what
they prepared there outside of that facility?
MR. HASEGAWA: I suppose if they wanted to do that, that's possible. Clubs
can also use that to prepare their luau things.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
necessarily businesses?

Okay.

So for families also and not

MR. HASEGAWA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hasegawa.
Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon,
Mr. Hasegawa, and thank you for coming here today. Can you just briefly
tell us what you were going to share with us before your testimony ran out
regarding the report that you have?
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MR. HASEGAWA: Oh. This is the annual report that they sent out to the public
and I thought I'd ask the executive director to send one to each one of the
Council Members. And it'll tell you a lot of things that Hana Health has
done, how it started, the different programs that went into it and what it is
up to June 30, 2007.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, any more
questions for Mr. Hasegawa? Seeing none, thank you again for being
here, Mr. Hasegawa.
MR. HASEGAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time is there anyone in the gallery that want to
provide public testimony? If you can come up and provide your
testimony, you have three minutes to provide the Members with your
testimony. There is no additional minute to conclude. If you can testify at
this time give us your name and the organization that you represent. And
once you're done with your testimony if you can sign up with our
Secretary.
MR. CASHMAN: Okay. Good afternoon, Council Chair, and, Council
Members. My name is Ed Cashman, I live in Hana. I going testify on two
things. First of all the, I retired from the Fire Department so, in fact I used
to be a tanker driver so I support the, I retired from the Honolulu Fire
Department, 32 years ... (end of tape IE). .. I think I understand the
value of a tanker. The second thing I want to testify on is I'm a board
member of the Hana Health Center and, I ask, I thank you for your past
support and I ask your support now for a nutrition center. I'm the, I'm the
newest board member, I just came aboard in November. I didn't realize,
well maybe I did, but when we had our meeting in December we have our
meeting in a tent and it was raining and stormy, in fact we sitting on
benches where we have to move benches because the water is running
down. And the, that tent where the exercises are done got blown off so we
only had the pipes. Being a board member is a, is a, you know how I
mean, we might be a little controversial, but we don't get paid, you know,
we don't derive any benefits. But I joined because I feel it's a service that
we all need, you know that service that, because we, we two hours from
every place, we cannot do without. Being a captain in the Fire
Department I realize the importance of having a medical service. I've
seen many people die, without, without a medical service, you know, it's,
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it's something that we can't do without. Again I thank you for your past
support and I ask for your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the
testifier at this time? Seeing none, again thank you very much for being
here. One last chance members of the gallery, final call if you want to
provide public testimony, if you can come up at this time. Seeing no one
rushing to the podium the Chair would like to ask the Members if there's
no objections to close public testimony at this time.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, again we do have a
heavy agenda this afternoon. The first item on the agenda is BF-92.
BF -92 is the proposed South Maui Police Station. I believe the
Department will be providing us with an overview of the South Maui,
proposed South Maui Police Station. So at this time the Chair would like
to call a short recess, at the call of the Chair to lower our screen. So this
meeting is in recess .... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM NO. 92:

2:45 p.m.
2:46 p.m.

PROPOSED SOUTH MAUl POLICE STATION (C.C. No.
08-33)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. At this time the Chair would like to introduce
the Police Chief, again, Members, the Police Department will be providing
us with an overview of the proposed South Maui Police Station. Chief
Phillips. Oh, again, Members, just one request, once the presentation is
completed then we'll have Q&A from the Department. So if you can hold
up your questions until then the Chair would appreciate, appreciate that.
So again, Chief.
MR. PHILLIPS: Good afternoon, Chair, and, Members. I have Captain Hudson
who is our project coordinator for the South Maui Police Station. He's
going to do this presentation and then we'll be available for questions
after.
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MR. HUDSON: (PowerPoint presentation) Greetings, I'm Captain Larry Hudson
with the Maui Police Department. I'd like to thank the Chairperson
Pontanilla and the Members of the County Council for the opportunity to
make this presentation regarding the progress towards the completion of
the Kihei Police Station.
The mission of the Maui Police Department is to serve the community in a
manner that epitomizes those ideals woven into the fabric of the
constitution of the United States and the spirit of aloha. We the men and
women of the Maui Police Department are honored to have this
responsibility and will do our utmost to demonstrate our loyalty and
commitment to our community.
We're going to go over some real quick facts here, interesting facts. The
Department was officially created on July 1 and despite belief to the
contrary I was not alive in 1939. In approximately 1940 there were 76
employees or one officer for every 734 persons. The expenditures totaled
for the entire Department 134,000. A per capita cost of $2.42. These are
interesting facts but these are the real facts. The investigative facts there
was 2.3 [sic] major cases investigated per officer per year. Twenty four
non-major cases, these are like your lower end thefts, non-felonious
assaults, that type of stuff. And 5.3 motor vehicle collisions, it was all
motor vehicle collisions. We'll get back to the stats in a little bit.
All of Maui County grew over the next fifty years, however, the Kihei
District not only grew, it boomed. There was a large increase in
population, hotel rooms, traffic conditions, roadways, and of course crime.
Currently, it shows no signs of slowing down. Within the last 25 years the
advent ofPiilani Highway, Grand Wailea, the Four Seasons, Maui Prince,
both sides of South Kihei Road taken up with hotels and housing and it
continues to boom. Kihei is no longer considered the Keawe brush lands
it was. It is now a vibrant, busy town and provides economic and social
benefit to the entire County.
Considerations for the Kihei District coming in to its own as a regular
district began in the early 1990's, and by the mid-1990's we established a
community police place. The Wailuku Station continued to serve as the
primary facility for Kihei. This meant that with each arrest or court or
what have you, an officer would be required to leave the district for a
minimum of one and half hours. Normally it would be more like about
two and half, half hour to drive back, half hour to process the prisoner,
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half hour to get back to town assuming there's no traffic and the prisoner
is cooperative. And we sometimes don't arrest cooperative people. This
would cause a decrease in officer safety, response time, and service to the
community. Whenever you take officers out of service you, you
jeopardize public safety. So we definitely, we're moving towards creating
Kihei as its own district.
To get back to the interesting facts. At this point in time, instead of 76
employees there's 403. The expenditures went from 135,000 to 24
million. Per capita cost increased from $2.45 [sic} to $189. But here's the
real, real stats our, the other counterparts investigated 2.3 cases per year,
major cases, each officer now investigates 63.5. They handle 110
non-major cases, these are your harassments, your lower end thefts. But
this is not calls for service, call for service includes civil complaints and
stuff like that which was well over 100,000 calls for service in that year.
And while our yesteryear counterpart investigated 5.3 accidents per year
and these are minor and major, our officers today investigate a minimum
of about 11 major accidents per year. This does not include your minor
fender benders, it's not even included as a statistic.
I have to talk a little bit about police stations. Police stations, unlike a
Wal-Marts or stores or stuff like that are specialty buildings, they should
be built from the ground up as such. It's very difficult to renovate an
existing building to become a police station. The locker rooms must
adhere to union agreements, the cellblocks must confirm to numerous
Federal guidelines. These include slope to grade, epoxy cement, line of
sight, CC TV, you have to have a redundant HV AC system, you have to a
redundant, a redundant generators. The entire station should be capable of
passing the accreditation process. Most importantly, and this is most
importantly, the district station must be able to function in the most
adverse and extreme conditions. When tsunamis hits and when hurricanes
hit, the station must be able to function, it has to be able to be the beacon
to the public at that point in time that it is still operational. Which means
it has to be able to generate its own electricity, it has to be able to have its
own water supply. It has to be self sufficient in the worst of conditions. A
district station must serve the community at all times.
Okay. For purpose of the Police Department and this is a narrow scope of
the district boundaries. The Kihei district boundaries include everything
from North Kihei Road all the way out to the tunnel which includes
Maalaea, south on North Kihei Road to the lava flows past La Parouse
Bay, Makena, Wailea, Kihei proper and back on Mokulele Highway to the
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drag strips, to near the drag strips. Kihei became an operational district in
April 2nd from the year our lord 2000. It is quartered at 1881 South Kihei
Road, Kihei Town Center by Foodland. In a converted store front
property with 2,400 square feet which is really tiny for a police station.
This was an ad-hoc measure from the beginning, until a permanent police
station could be constructed.
Now we're looking for a Kihei station. The station must be located in the
Kihei District. This is the criteria we used. The station must be out of the
SMA, it wouldn't make sense to build a station that gets wiped out by a
tsunami. The station must be constructed as a police facility from the
ground up. The station site must be a minimum of six acres and this is
from lessons learned. Our current site sits on six acres in Wailuku and
we've converted xerox rooms, lounges and even flare rooms into offices.
We have no more space in that building and we're busting at the seams.
So, we would like something at least ten acres, but we'd go with a
minimum of six. We conducted site assessments, and the way we did this
is we looked at all the State land, all the County land that was available
that would meet our criteria. We went by air, helicopter and we went by
ground to review all of these places. And then we identified, actually it
was only one real site that fit the bill.
Okay. In your lower left hand corner is the eXIstmg site, this is the
Foodland. This is where the proposed site is, this is on the mauka side of
Piilani Highway at Kanani. Yeah. It's ideal, it's an ideal site because it's
outside of the SMA, outside of the flood zone, there's a stop light right
there which is huge. This would allow the officers to go left or right or
head right down into Kihei proper. It sits on an area of ten acres, the
parcel itself is 150 acres, but we worked it out to where we get ten acres
and these ten acres are right at that corner. This is what this Kihei Station
looks, looking down on it. The north side of that slide would be the
Haleakala side, the south side would be the ocean side, the right hand side
would be your Makena/Wailea and the left hand side would be your
Maalaea.
This is the progress that we've already done towards completing this
station. On August 22, 2005 County of Maui Parks identifies and sets
aside ten acres for use by the Police Department to construct the district
station. Architects Hawaii is selected to prepare conceptual drawings
under contract 2295, executed November 14, 2005. A topographical
survey was completed on December 10, 2005. Conceptual drawings
which originally came in at $64 million were completed in April of 2006.
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The QBS the quality base selection to select the consultant/architect for
the actual station began on September 26, 2006. Mitsunaga & Associates,
who is in the audience now, was selected on October 16, 2006 as our
consultant and architect. A fully executed contract with Mitsunaga &
Associates was issued on November 30,2007 under contract 4031. We've
already contacted County Planning Department and Long Range Planning,
Long Planning stated that that's an acceptable site for the Kihei Station.
County Planning Department said that they would work with us to get any
land variances that we need. Charettes occurred, charettes are like design
meetings where everybody gets together and tries to decide what the
station should look like on the inside and on the outside.
The building designs continues to be in progress. This is what we have so
far on the building, this is what the inside of the building would look like
and the drawings are actually going on right now. It's a two floor
building. The existing Kihei Police Station, 2,400 square feet. Proposed
new Kihei Police Station 46,000 square feet. This building will be
comparable in size to the Wailuku Station. Project schedule, target dates,
the environmental assessment and land use variance started in January
2008 with anticipated approval in January 2009. August/September 2008
building permit application submission. Late July 1, 2009 advertise to bid.
Early September 2009 bid award. October 2009 notice to proceed for
construction. Build out by April 2010.
Cost concerns and project bid out. The project is expected to cost about
$40 million. This was scaled down from the original 64 million, the 64
million included a training wing, a separate motor pool and some other
things that we took out to try and get the project at a more reasonable rate.
You have, I've had some experience in capital improvement projects and
this is a risky thing to say but it should not go over budget. I guess let's
hope. It will be designed to be built out over two budget cycles. This first
cycle will complete rough civil/site work, moderate work towards the
foundation. And the second cycle will complete the structure to the point
of occupancy. And the last two slides are just budgetary slides. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Captain Hudson. Members, the Chair will
call for a short recess to have our screen go up. Members, don't run away.
Short recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:00 p.m.
3:01 p.m.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. At this time the Chair would like to
recognize Chief Phillips. If you have any opening comments. And, Chief
Phillips, if you could introduce some of the members that are here this
afternoon that probably can be resource people if Members have any
questions to ask.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Before I do there's one correction on
the presentation. The final build out would be 2011, not 2010. I think that
was a typo. But we do have some staff here if there is questions, we have
Mr. Aaron Fujii from Mitsunaga & Associates from Honolulu, he is here
in case there is questions for him. Jay Buzianis the County CIP
Coordinator is here as well, he's helping on this project. And Kathleen
Aoki from Planning is also here in case there's any question for Planning.
And I guess we'll just, we'll take any questions that you have and try and
answer them.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Anderson.

Thank you.

Members, any questions?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
being here and for the, the good PowerPoint. This
Maui. Twenty eleven is really not that long away.
is going to be comparable in size to the Wailuku
many officers would you envision being housed
word, you know, centered at this station?

Member

Thank you, Chief, for
is good news for South
You're saying that this
Station right. So how
Of, that's not the right

MR. PHILLIPS: I'll let Captain Hudson, 'cause we don't have, obviously one of
the things we'd like to do is, is, is plan for the future 'cause we know
there's going to be growth from what we have right now. We have 40
something officers in Kihei now, obviously it would be adequate for that
number. But as, as you know the way Kihei is growing and we anticipate
growth in the Department in, in the near future and in the long term. So
like we did with Lanai we're trying to plan for growth and I'll let Larry
add to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. HUDSON: The station right now if it was open today would accommodate a
little over 70 police officers, male police officers and would accommodate
about 28 female police officers.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In addition to the 70 male?
MR. HUDSON: In addition to the 70, that's correct. But the way the building is
constructed there's storage sites on two sides of the male's locker which
would probably be the first to be expanded. The twenty eight females will
see us for the next 20 years at least. I don't see us getting 30 females out
there for a while.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So 70 male and 20 female that, a total in
that district then being 90 officers that this station could accommodate?
MR. HUDSON: No. About 100. It's 72 male and 28 female.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. Oh.
MR. HUDSON: If it was open today.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So was this plan based on a certain
build out for the Kihei area, a population build out for Kihei?
MR. HUDSON: I'm sorry, I don't understand the question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well generally police officers are assigned
based on per capita. In other words so many police officers like you had
in your figure back in 19 ... so many police officers per population, per
capita. In 1940 you had one officer for every 734 people. So I know
those stats have changed now but the per capita rate of police officers to
citizenry, let's put it that way.
MR. HUDSON: The per capita rate right now is about one to 624.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One to 624.
MR. HUDSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's a national rate?
MR. HUDSON: That's our rate on Maui per our most recent annual.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, oh, I'm just wondering if, if the design
and the capacity of the station was based on a particular build out scenario
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for the South Maui District. 'Cause I'm assuming that this would service
people from Maalaea all the way to Ahihi Kinau right?
MR. HUDSON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I mean, when you talked with Long
Range did they tell you that, you know, we need accommodations for 100
officers to meet the build out that we anticipate up to 2030 or anything like
that?
MR. HUDSON: If the current population, correction, if the manpower in Kihei
doubled in size in the next 20 years this station would accommodate them.
Which means the population would have to double in the next 20 years.
Does that answer your question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, not really 'cause I look at it a little bit
differently in that, you know, I look at national statistics and facility
studies say we should have 800 officers down there based on the
population. Not just, I know the Chief doesn't like this, but, you know,
that's what the, the national. ..
MR. PHILLIPS: Did you say we should have 800?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, 88.
MR. PHILLIPS: Oh,88. I'm sorry I thought I heard 800.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did I say 800? I meant 88.
MR. PHILLIPS: I'd like to have 800 officers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, but that's from the National Chief of
Police Association stats. And so based on the per capita which is also, you
know, our visitor, our de facto population, it's not just the residents that
need police service. Based on those standards we should have 88, we've
got 46 or so, 45 positions assigned. So I'm just bringing that up because
if, you know, if we were to meet the per capita of 88 and there's no way
we can do that 'cause we can't even fill the 45 we have right now.
Hopefully that will change in time, you know, the housing crisis will be
taken care of, salaries will become more, you know, equitable in a way
that we can attract more officers. But I'm just hoping that, well if you say
100 officers is adequate, I just would like to know maybe how far out in
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the future we're thinking 100 officers would be adequate to serve the
population as it grows.
MR. PHILLIPS: Well, you know, there, there are other factors to determine the
number of officers that we need in, in a particular area, it's not just
population. So if you're looking at something from IACP or whatever it's,
it's, it's a very general guideline. Because there are a lot of other factors,
geographical area is one, the *caseload is another. You know, because we
put population in an area doesn't necessarily mean more crime. So, so the
caseload and the, and the crime rate and stuff is important as well in
determining where you need officers. So for us to, for us to come in and
say within 20 years we want to build a station to house 200 officers, that
would be great but we're not going to get the funding for that. So that's
another consideration that we had to look at what realistically we could
ask for in trying to build this station in Kihei because it's very expensive.
So we want to look for a building that will allow us future growth as well.
And like the Captain mentioned if in 20 years from now 100 officers is not
enough in Kihei there is area in this building that would allow us to
renovate for future growth. So that's the best way I can answer that. I
really can't predict when 20 years from now whether we'll have 100 or
we'll need only 80 officers in Kihei, I'm not sure. You know, realistically
and if I had my dream list, I told you that last year, I'd have a lot more
officers in a lot more areas in the, in the County. But I have to look at
what I can fill and what the County can afford. And that, those are the real
things that I have look in, in deciding where to place people and what
positions to ask for.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I understand, Chief. And I'm also
happy to see that, you know, you have room for expansion and you're
going for ten acres over the six acres so that there is room for expansion.
That's great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Chief,
for the presentation. And I wanted to ask, the existing police station in
Kihei right now, does it have holding cell capacity or capabilities?
MR. PHILLIPS: It does have a holding cell.

- 38 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 10,2008

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And what's the number of detention days
you can hold them there before transferring them?
MR. PHILLIPS: We transport them immediately into Wailuku. We would, we
would mainly take them there to process and if there was any further
investigation or, or statements that needed to be taken. And then as soon
as possible we transport them to Wailuku. So we, we don't keep people
there very long. It's only a detention cell.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so with the new facilities being
planned you would be able to hold them longer like you do in Wailuku?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes. Theoretically, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
housing a firing range?

Okay.

Would the new station also be

MR. PHILLIPS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay.
And because, you know, the
presentation said that it should cost about 40 million and it should not go
over budget which is a very ambitious expectation. So pretty much it's
more than beyond the conceptual plans right now? It's more in the detail -

MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --plans right?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes. We have a consultant on board that is already working on
the design of the station.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: And that, that's Mitsunaga & Associates.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I know in our Wailuku existing station there
was both problems with the firing range being in there and also the air
conditioning. Have we learned from that, you know, as far as designing
the Kihei Station?
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MR. PHILLIPS: Well, absolutely. We're not, we're not attempting to put an
indoor range at this facility for one. But the other issues with the air
conditioning I think we've learned a lot from.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: I think that's one of always one of the bigger issues with a
building of that size.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right. And so you'll continue to use
the firing range in Ukumehame?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

Thank you, Chief.

Mahalo,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Chief.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon,

MR. PHILLIPS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And good afternoon, Captain Hudson. Quick
question on, regarding with the cost of materials and fuel and everything
else going up, has the Department considered using, applying green
principles in the construction of the building and solar heating and I guess
water fixtures that could save, conserve water as part of I guess maybe one
possible way of keeping costs down?
MR. HUDSON: First of all, a lot of the green things are expensive, they're more
expensive than normal build outs. Some of them are being considered
like, like your solar and stuff like that. But to say that the entire building
will be green I think that would be a premature statement and probably not
be correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So I guess the upfront cost is expensive but I
guess long term but, but for the time being you're just looking at some?
MR. HUDSON: Some green, not the entire building.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Good. How about technology as far as,
you know, what we have here for example in Wailuku versus what's going
to be out in Kihei. Can you give comments on as far as what Kihei may
have versus what Wailuku has? And any ideas as far as what would be
implemented for this particular police station? Because it's a growing
community and, you know, I don't know what the crime rate is and how
many call outs you have at this time. Any comments on, in terms of
technology you would like to see added?
MR. HUDSON: Well technology is something that's kind, kind of hard to
predict. It's a very fluid science. What we did on Lanai is we've made
the, the conduits running underground we, we left 40 percent of them
empty so that what comes in the future there'll be room to build in. We'll
be doing similar things with the Kihei Station. Probably build in some
routers and some, some computer stuff to begin with. But it's hard to
predict. The, the station when we actually start building it will be built to
be expanded. Unlike the Wailuku Station which is maxed out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. This location that you
show on the map, how far away is this from Kamalii Elementary School?
MR. PHILLIPS: Maybe a half mile.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Half of mile. Okay. 'Cause I was trying-MR. PHILLIPS: It may be less.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I was trying to get the proximity.
MR. PHILLIPS:
down.

Yeah, it's fairly close.

That would be the next intersection

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The next intersection down. Okay. And
you feel this area here you have enough room for expansion with the ten
acres that, you like minimum six but realistically ten acres would probably
be best suited?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I'm curious ... (end of tape
2A) . .. in this day and age of cost overruns that's going to stay under $40
million 'cause I'm quite curious how that's going to occur because I've
never seen a project come under budget very often. Not when it comes to
government, no offense to government, you know.
MR. PHILLIPS: Because Larry said so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. Okay. I know if Larry's mother had
said I would have no problem but if it's only Larry I think we're in
trouble.
MR. PHILLIPS: I think Larry's mother told him to keep it under budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. We're okay. The last question I
have, Mr. Chair, and to the Chief and to Larry. Do you feel this is central
enough, because I mean, you know, this is such a big geographical area
doing all the way to Maalaea, actually out to the tunnel, you know, you
talking tremendous amount of distance and going the other way. Is this,
you feel like this is a real good location as far as centralized so that your
response time either way would be pretty favorable?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, we do. Actually we, we felt it's the perfect location. And
you remember that we don't typically respond from the station, the
officers respond from a beat. So they're assigned to a geographical area
so they, they should be closer to the area that they need to respond from.
But as far as being central enough that when we have an arrest or we have
to bring someone to the station or meet someone there for a statement or
whatever that, that is. It, it's pretty central and easily, easy to get to for us.
It's above the station, it's out of the flood zone, I mean I'm sorry, above
the, the highway and out of the flood zone. And so we, we felt like it's a,
the best location that we could find down there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So if there was something to happen on
Honoapiilani Highway, let's use Maalaea, this would be closer than
Wailuku?
MR. PHILLIPS: I'm not sure if it' s closer but the officer assigned there would be
closer, yes. Because they're assigned to that beat area.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I, I understand that. I understand that but
for, for the purpose of you just said, so, you know, if you're going to
detain somebody you'd bring them all the way back down here 'cause I'm
thinking from Maalaea to, to Wailuku is about six, about seven miles.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. There, there are occasions even now where if we had an
arrest say in Maalaea or an arrest on Mokulele Highway and some, they
may have the officers take them directly to the Wailuku Station even now.
So that, that could happen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: If it was that, depending on the type of situation. If it were
going to be arrest and release probably they'd take 'em back to the Kihei
Station and process' em there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. PHILLIPS: But if, depending on the circumstances they, they, they still
could bring' em in to Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then as far as the number of
officers, once this is built, you said 70 and females 20-something. Is
there, is there a plan of action as far as like this Kihei area like in West
Maui, you know, where we start, start to put more officers in those areas
because of the high, what I call non-resident population, the visitor, the
visitor industry continues to grow in these areas?
MR. PHILLIPS: Well there will be a plan almost immediately when we have the
new station to put more officers there because we will be assigning
detectives. Right now detectives respond to the Kihei area from Wailuku,
we don't have, right now, there's only a patrol function in Kihei because
the station is small. So eventually we'll, we'll have detectives assigned in
Kihei so that's going to increase the number there. And eventually we'd
want to have other specialized services responding from the Kihei Station
like juvenile or vice, some of the, some of the specialized services.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you guys would still be interested in
little substations for these developments that are coming up that want to
have, what we call police station, or I guess would be called a substation
like 670, maybe Makena or up Maalaea, you know, where the police
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would have some, even closer for them immediately to write reports, et
cetera.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah, absolutely. Those, we, we don't consider them
substations but they would be more community, community policing
offices like we have at MCC and some of the other locations. We have
one in Kula, up in Makawao where officers can go and use, use the phone
and sometimes meet people there, take statements, have community
meetings there. So, yes, we are still interested in those locations and we
still, we do have a couple in Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And what about Wailuku, you know, that,
the one right there in Wailuku Town, is that a community ...
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right, thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, thank you very much. I believe the,
the Captain or the Chief, excuse me, already responded to some of my
questions. However I guess maybe I can just ask the Chief whether at this
particular point in time when you are moving forward with your plans.
Can you tell us what percentage of space you're expecting to save or clear
out from Wailuku Station with the, the opening of the Kihei Station?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. You know, we, when we started the planning of this,
that, that first conceptual design. We had talked about the possibility of
moving some functions from Wailuku maybe the training function and
even, even the communications. We looked at the possibility of moving
some of those functions out to give us more space in Wailuku. But
because of that price tag that they came back, that 64 million so we had to
cut back. I told them we weren't building a hotel. So, you know, we had,
we had to cut some of, so we're not really looking at moving any
functions right now out of the Wailuku Station. There may be some, some
personnel that might be assigned to the Kihei Station depending on, on
what we're able to obtain in budgets and stuff along the way but we're
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probably looking at moving some detectives down there and maybe some
personnel but not so much entire functions, offices or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So you don't, you don't anticipate any
kind of space savings from, at Wailuku base ...
MR. PHILLIPS: Not really.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
could be Mr. Hudson's mom.

And perhaps a good project manager

MR. HUDSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: See what happens when you get a famous mom.
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one more quick question. Thank you,
Chair. You know, this is on a 150 acre parcel owned by the County right
now, right?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do you know what else is planned on
this parcel in near proximity to you folks?
MR. PHILLIPS: I don't know the planning right now. But it's, it's, it's Parks
Department property so I'm not, but I'm not sure what the long term plans
are for the rest of that property.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so when you guys did your site plan
and, and looked at the topography. The area that you're planning on
using, is there going to be any serious grading necessary? Do you know?
MR. HUDSON: That's, that's about the flattest part of that parcel.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. HUDSON: If there's going to be grubbing, probably. There's probably
going to be some grubbing, probably not significant. Because it's mostly
blue rock in that particular area, we're going to try and build up rather
than tear down.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great.
MR. HUDSON: So in direct answer to your question there will be some
grubbing, yes. But not too significant ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
gulches?

You're not going to fill in any drainage

MR. HUDSON: No. We don't plan on doing that. No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the reason I ask is because we were
told that this parcel isn't really suitable for a park because it needs too
much grading, it's too ...
MR. HUDSON: The entire parcel, that might be true. But, but for this particular
part of that parcel ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You got the good part?
MR. HUDSON: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Chair.

Good.

Okay.

Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson.
followed by Member Medeiros.

Thank you,

Member Johnson

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Chief. I know this has been a long time
coming. With regard to the site questions that Member Anderson was just
asking, what is the proximity to the wastewater plant? Is that nearby or is
it on a totally separate parcel?
MR. PHILLIPS: It's totally separate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: Several, I guess a couple miles probably from that ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you won't be able to take
advantage of some of our reclaimed water?
MR. PHILLIPS: Well I don't know, but we're not near the site.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. 'Cause that, that was one of the things
that I know it's kind of a rocky site and that was one of the reasons why
Parks just did not want to move forward with even some of their plans for
I guess making a regional park out of that area because of the expense
involved. With regard to the recent purchase of the morgue and then, you
know, some of the services 'cause I noticed in your presentation you also
noted that you're bursting at the seams in your location here. Will this
alleviate some of that overcrowding but will the morgue as an interim
measure, 'cause I know this won't be completed for quite a while. Will
that enable you to transfer and reduce some of the overcrowding at your
current location?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, I believe the morgue will, we're, we're looking at possibly
moving some functions or some sections into that building. So we haven't
decided yet, as soon as we get a chance to take the staff and, and go
through that building and get a good idea of, of exactly what we can do
with it. But we are looking at, at that particular building help alleviate
some of the crowding in Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and I know this is premature
because we, you know, we're going to find the money first. And of course
sometimes, you know, construction will take place over quite a long
period of time. One of the things that we've been hearing recently is that
people are in need of jobs. So in the construction of this particular
property, will you be using local union labor to, you know, actually be
constructing this? I'm sure that there are government requirements, you
know, to do that but I, I just want to make sure that, you know, that the
importation of a lot of off island workers which has really sucked, you
know, the wind out of a lot of our construction here. I just want to make
sure that we're going to at least have some government work that will
keep our people employed.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. Obviously it's a project that has to go out to bid. And I
would hope that it's, certainly hope that it's a local company. (speaking to
Mr. Hudson) Do you have any ...
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MR. HUDSON: (speaking to Mr. Phillips) Just that they have to follow DavisBacon.
MR. PHILLIPS: (speaking to Mr. Hudson) They have to what?
MR. HUDSON: (speaking to Mr. Phillips) Davis-Bacon.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Davis-Bacon Act.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and one of the things and perhaps
because I've asked this question and I was asked this question actually by
a commissioner who, you know, wanted to ensure that, you know, certain
jobs or certain unions were kept in business. He suggested that we put
certain conditions or put certain requirements and so I would ask you to
find out from Corporation Counsel at some point in time, when we're
doing the request for proposal because we have I believe utilized as best
we can the local labor force. If this is something that is becoming a
problem and apparently according to the construction industry locally who
are stakeholders it is becoming a problem because these jobs are going to
so many off island companies. If there's anything that you could actually
put in the request for a proposal or the bid request to ensure that we are
keeping our workforce employed at the local level so that there's not all
this huhu that's been going on. I don't know if it's legal but I was asked
the question by a union representative. So I, I just throw it out -MR. PHILLIPS: We will talk to Corp. Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --to you.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. PHILLIPS: We have a lot of jobs available by the way.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that was what I was thinking
the other day, you know, just that, you know, hello, forget about
construction, we desperately need you here in Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson.
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MR. PHILLIPS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Chief, we're always
concerned about the infrastructure and looking at the map it seems like
you guys are in some kind of a no-man's land. I mean there's nothing
there except below. So are all the infrastructure in place or is the cost of
the facility going to include bringing the infrastructure to the site?
MR. PHILLIPS: That will be a part of the cost.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: We'll have to bring in --what?
MR. HUDSON: Water and electricity. Water and electricity.
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah. Water and electricity we'll have to bring in.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What about sewer, because we understand
sewer collection and transmission lines are on South Kihei Road and then
they're pumped up to the station, I mean to the wastewater treatment plant.
So you guys are going to have to take sewer lines from below all the way
up to the facility?
MR. PHILLIPS: I think we want Aaron to maybe, do you want to reply to that,
some of that? Yeah. Aaron Fujii from Mitsunaga & Associates. Because
he's been-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. PHILLIPS: --involved in that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, if you would allow it?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. Just my understanding, I think the proposed
police station is almost adjacent to the wastewater treatment plant in
Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They, they said it's quite a ways from it.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Kanani Road, right?
MR. PHILLIPS: Yeah, we're on Kanani.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kanani Road is, to the left of Kanani Road as you're
looking towards the mountain is the treatment plant. So, go ahead.
Identify yourself please.
MR. FUJII: Okay. My name is Aaron Fujii, I'm with Mitsunaga & Associates.
I'm an architect on this project.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. In, in our consideration of other
projects for South Maui we were informed by our Wastewater Division
that the sewer lines in Kihei are mostly on South Kihei Road and then they
get pumped up to the wastewater treatment plant on, just above Piilani
Highway. So what is the infrastructure for sewer to take it up to the site
that the police station is planned for?
MR. FUJII: Okay. We're currently right in, in that research phase. Ifwe cross
the street there is a sewer manhole maybe within, my best guess, 500 feet
from this location. We don't know if we can use that, I can't answer that
question right now. But as part of the planning phase there was different
alternatives that, that we're looking at for sewer. Sewer will be coming
through that area sometime in the future. It's planned, it's part of Maui
County's plan. We could have a so called septic type of system if that, if
that is allowed. Again we're looking at this. We should be able to come
back to you within, let's say within two months with an answer on that,
we'll know for sure how we're going to handle that, that sewer problem,
not a problem, the situation on getting sewer off the site. From what I
understand there wouldn't be anybody in the police station, they're all out
working right? Only kidding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So we can take out all the, all the restrooms
and showers? But anyway, okay. And I'm sure, you know, that may
affect the cost is what I'm getting to.
MR. FUJII: Right now we do have that built in to the project cost. We took
every consideration regarding cost and have associated with, or worked
with the Police Department and that's how we came up with the, I guess
I'll stick with their line, not to exceed 40 million, down from 64.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And within that budget amount that you're
planning on, that doesn't include infrastructure for R-1 water?
MR. FUJII: No, we do have some, oh ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Reclaimed water.
MR. FUJII: No, no reclaimed water.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. FUJII: Well we do have in there and again this is very premature, again
we're going to be working with the County ofMaui, put a reservoir which
is a tank, a possible tank to serve that area. We don't know the size or the
capacity of that tank yet or even if we'll put that in. So that, that's, we're
at a premature stage right now. Again within a couple of months we
should have all that answers ready for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But that tank is for domestic water?
MR. FUJII: For domestic water.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Potable water, right?
MR. FUJII: Yes, potable water. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And since you, you seem to know a
lot about the water thing. Does that facility have a preference for water
reservation for that facility? I mean is the Water Department saying yes
we have enough water for this facility for you to utilize?
MR. FUJII: No. That, that's why that this tank issue has been around for as long
as this planning for Kihei Police Station been around. So there was
always a possibility that, the, the size of that tank is, again will be
determined by Maui County based on the future development of that area.
Do we put in a 800 gallon tank just for the police station? Or do we put in
a 2,000,500 gallon reservoir for future development in the area? And I
mean that, I can't answer that, that'll be left up to, I guess decision for the
County Council and Maui County to decide.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for. ..
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MR. FUJII: So we do have some costs in there for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for the information you
have provided. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, the Chair is,
you know, in the future, near future, you know, we're going to be having
the Police Department come back to us again. And what the Police
Department had provided us is an overview of what is being proposed in
Kihei in the next several years. I know there's a lot of work that need to
be done in regards to site preparation, infrastructure and, you know, the
whole bit. And, you know, with the consultants now knowing our
questions we'll go back and take a look at the needs for the Police
Department, the future Police Department in South Kihei. So we ... okay,
Member ... last question, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Just a real quick question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I just want to move on because we do have a heavy
agenda ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I understand and I'm just wondering,
Chief, do you know, or Mr. Matsunaga might know. Do they need to get a
Change in Zoning? 'Cause if that's the case they'll have to come to the
Council anyway for, for that.
MR. PHILLIPS: That is what we're working on now and we're hoping by next
January to have that completed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Good. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, again
thank you very much, Mr. Fujii, for being here. If there is no questions
the Chair would like to recommend that we file this County
communication.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.

- 52 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 10,2008

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Medeiros. Any more discussion, Members? If not, all in favor of the
motion please say "aye."
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any opposed? Seeing none, motion is carried. Eight
ayes, one excused, Member Hokama.

VOTE:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Vice-Chair Hokama.

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FILING of communication by

c.R.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Again, thank you very much, Chief, Captain, for being
here.
MR. PHILLIPS: Thank you all for your time, we appreciate it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, at this time the Chair will call for a short
recess. Five minutes to go bathroom and whatever you need to do. And
then when we come back we'll take up BF-2 which is the CDBG program.
So this meeting is in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM NO. 2:

3:36 p.m.
3:45 p.m.

CDBG PROGRAM (e.c. No. 07-307)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance meeting is now
reconvened. Thank you, Members, for that short recess. The next item on
the agenda this afternoon is BF-2, CDBG program. Members, in a
transmitted [sic] dated, transmittal dated February 25, 2008 the following
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documents are provided. One, a summary of the applications received for
CDBG funding for program year 2008. Two, listings of recommended
projects and alternate projects with contact information. And three,
executive summaries and selected information from applicant's application
for each project. The proposed resolution authorizes the Mayor or
representative to execute and file an application with the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development for $2,038,242 for the
various projects that are listed. It also lists alternate projects which, which
may receive funding through reprogram actions or one of the previous
mentioned projects proved not feasible for funding. At this time the Chair
would like to recognize Ms. Gentz to provide some opening comments.
And, Ms. Gentz, if you can introduce your staff person with you this
afternoon. Ms. Gentz.
MS. GENTZ: Thank you. Good afternoon. This is Roland Prieto, he's a
program specialist with the, with CDBG. So good afternoon, Chairman
Pontanilla, and, Members of the Budget and Finance Committee. Thank
you very much for your time and the opportunity to discuss with you the
CDBG program and the proposed resolution today.
This year's
competitive application process, which conforms to the process
established five years ago and is consistent with the County's five year
consolidated plan, began last Fall with public hearings held in conjunction
with the Mayor's budget hearings in each of the eight community districts.
Four grant workshops for the public, two in Wailuku and one each on
Molokai and Lanai. Individual technical assistance appointments with 15
organizations including three organizations on Molokai and public notices
for a request for proposals published in the Lanai Times, the Molokai
Dispatch and twice in the Maui News.
The open application period was a five week period from October 29th to
December 3rd . Eleven proposals totaling approximately 3.7 million were
initially received for consideration this year. The proposals were screened
for eligibility and threshold factors by the CDBG staff. Two proposals did
not pass this initial screening because the proposed activities were
ineligible by CDBG regulations or inconsistent with the County's five
year consolidated plan. All eligible proposals were evaluated by a panel
composed of five members and one alternate using predetermined rating
criteria which was publicly disclosed. The criteria included consolidated
plan priority, project readiness, financial considerations, project impact
and delivery, and applicant attributes.
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The panel composItIOn included various professional disciplines and
experience based on the recommendation of the Mayor, two members of
the panel were members of the community. The members of the panel
included Jo Anne Ridao Housing Commissioner, Walle Landenberger GIS
Analyst, Gary Tavares Executive Assistant to the Mayor, Jamie
DeB runner community member from West Maui and myself, we're the
fifth, five members of the committee. And then due to a family
emergency the alternate became Monnie Gay another community member
from Upcountry.
The panel's funding recommendations were approved by the Mayor on
February 6th . I would like to take the opportunity to thank the funding
panel and the CDBG staff for their contributions to this year's application
process. Council member input was also very helpful.
The CDBG program is continually looking for ways to improve
performance of the program and therefore maximize the benefits to our
community. We were finding this is requiring an increase in public
outreach as well as technical assistance to both potential applicants and
approved projects. The resolution before you reflects the final HUD
allocation amount of $2,038,242 a decrease of approximately $47,500.
The 2.3 percent decrease for the County is in line with the overall Federal
budget reduction for the program nationally.
Members, the resolution respectfully presented to you today, which is the
result of thorough review as well as careful and thoughtful deliberations,
recommends a provision for CDBG program and administration as well as
five projects with three additional alternate projects. The projects
proposed for funding are the rehabilitation of buildings utilized to provide
emergency and transitional housing for homeless families and individuals
with roof replacement of the Ka Hale A Ke Ola Homeless Resource
Center. New construction of a nutrition center by Hana Health. An
emergency standby generator for a well site to provide water during
electrical power disruption and emergency situations for the Keanae water
system by the Department of Water Supply. Planning and design project
management and site preparation for the development of a community
health center on the island of Lanai by Lanai Women's Center. A fire
tanker for the Hana community. The rehabilitation of the existing
Molokai Occupational Center with the upgrade of the plumbing system
and installation of air conditioning. A fire utility truck for the island of
Lanai. And the new construction of a preschool facility by the Molokai
Community Service Council.
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These projects address our basic high priority needs as identified by our
community in our County consolidated plan include a variety of
recipients, three that are new to the CDBG program. Are geographically
dispersed through out our tri-isle County and directly supports all of the
low and moderate income concentration communities of Molokai, Lanai
and Hana. Provide a number of services including shelter, health, public
safety, social service and preschool education. Extend services to a wide
cross section of under served low and moderate income beneficiaries
numbering over 10,000 including homeless families, homeless families
and children, elderly and individuals with disabilities and special needs.
Therefore I respectfully ask the Members of the Committee for your
favorable consideration of our funding recommendation in its entirety with
your approval of the CDBG resolution. Thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Gentz. Members, we do have some
people from Lanai in the chambers this afternoon. And if you do have
questions of any organization because I understand that they need to get
back home to Lanai. If we can hold back our questions for Ms. Gentz and
if anyone of you have any questions for the Lanai residents that are here
this afternoon for the Lanai Women's Center, if you need them over here
at this time, Members? No? No. Thank you very much. So at this time
the Chair would like to say thank you for being here at this meeting. So
we'll see you probably on Lanai when we do our budget hearings on that
island. Thank you again for being here. Members, any question for
Ms. Gentz at this time? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And I'm going
to jump right into that same question I asked when we had the Fire
Department up here earlier. And this would be regarding the Hana tanker.
The total projection for the tanker in terms of costs is over, it's $574,000.
What the CDBG program is, is committing is 435,500 which leaves a
balance of 138,500. Now unless, unless they have some kind of a
commitment from the Department, these funds are not being requested in
their budget, so I don't know where they would get that kind of money
from. So maybe to Ms. Gentz, you know, how are you looking at
reprogrammables? I mean, are you sure monies are coming in so we are
able to cover these costs?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ms. Gentz.
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MS. GENTZ: Thank you. Currently we do have reprogramming funds available.
And so just to back up a second, they were the last ranked project before
the allocation, the total allocation was met. And so then they became the
first alternate. So they would be first in line for reprogramming funds at
that point.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So you can't, so you can list a program twice
then? Because this is what's happening here. If they're listed as a priority
and you're giving them the bulk of the funds then you're listing them
again as an alternate so you can provide the reprogrammables to it. So is
that a normal practice of listing your programs?
MS. GENTZ: This was a recommendation of HUD and as utilized by other
programs that we would include alternate projects in the resolution in case
other projects either came in under budget or for whatever reason weren't
able to utilize the funds. Then ... (end of tape 2B) . .. we need to expend
the Federal funds as quickly as possible and we are evaluated on that. We
need to have alternate projects ready so that we can, if funds become
available we have those projects ready to go.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. No, that, you know, I guess my, my only
concern is I want Hana to get their tanker, that is a priority. But my, my
worry was unless you are sure that there is reprogrammables then I don't
know where the Department would find the additional lOO-somewhat
thousand from. So I'm hearing assurances that they are an alternate, and
yes, you do have reprogrammable available so there will be no question in
them being able to secure, you know, paying for the full purchase price of
this tanker for Hana.
MR. GENTZ: That is always an issue when, you know, we have that alternate
that we can, I mean the, the project that we can only fund up to the
allocation. But this year we do have some reprogramming funds from a
couple projects that haven't moved forward.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo.
questions? Member Medeiros.

Members, any more

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I just want to
follow up on Member Mateo's questioning so that I can get more
clarification. So if an application comes in like the Hana fire tanker and
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you're providing so much funding which doesn't cover the entire cost of
the tanker. So are they, do they have to find supplemental funding other
than reprogrammable funds to assure you that they can purchase this truck
without the complete amount from CDBG?
MS. GENTZ: That would be normally if there weren't reprogramming funds
when we, that would be a question we would ask the applicant.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So they would have to provide you some
assurance they could do that?
MS. GENTZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

I see.

Okay.

Thank you, Ms. Gentz.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros.
followed by Member Anderson.

Member Baisa

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Gentz, I neglected to ask
you when we met this question and now that I'm really looking at the
schedule of where the money's coming from. Are you reasonably certain
that the other funding that will be necessary to complement the CDBG
funding is going to be able--you're going to be able to get that or they're
going to be able to get those funds? Because, you know, if we invest the
CDBG funds and say they're a third of the project or a fourth of the
project, you know, we need the rest of the money. And they list funding
sources but many of them not secured. So I'm kind of concerned, I want
to make sure that, you know, we're investing in a doable project.
MS. GENTZ: Are you asking specifically about the fire tanker or for projects in
general?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Projects in general.
MS. GENTZ: That is something we, we look at and evaluate and it is a risk that
we've run. In fact that there is a project from 2006 I believe that when
they initially came in it was for construction, they felt that their, their
budget was going, the building was going to cost $1 million. When they
actually went out to bid it came in at $2 million and they had only
$1 million already secured. So currently that project is not moving
forward until they're able to raise the additional funds. So, you know, the
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reality especially of the construction project, construction market at this
point is a concern for many of the projects. So we take it into
consideration, of course if a project comes in and has all of their funding,
yeah no problem. If they don't have everything, everything secured we
would take it into consideration when we evaluate the project.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, you know, having worked with a lot of
grants myself I get a little nervous when I see big requests from places like
Weinberg or State or County, well County pretty much we can control.
But, you know, other private sources 'cause if we have to come up with
the balance of the funding it might be significant just for this group of
projects. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. That was kind of the direction I
was going. Specifically on the nutrition center, the Hana nutrition center
you have, excuse me, 300,000 listed here for a total project expense of
almost 3.3. So, and they've, and they've listed 600,000 from HUD,
60,000 from other Federal funds, 1 million from State funds and
1.3 million private funds. Do you know if any of those funds have been
secured?
MS. GENTZ: My understanding is the Hawaiian Institute program, the 600,000
that is secured, the 60,000 from the Administration for Native Americans
is secured, 250,000 of the 1 million from the State is secured and I believe
that's it. That is secured at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So there's almost 2 million not yet secured
on this and I'm having a hard time seeing $1 million for landscaping when
the building only costs 300,000.
MS. GENTZ: I'm sorry I didn't follow the last question about the landscaping.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
summary?

Are you looking at their executive

MS. GENTZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They show $1 million for landscaping.
MS. GENTZ: That's landscaping 17,600? Maybe we ...
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It says State fund, 1 million.
MS. GENTZ: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So maybe I'm not reading this correctly.
MS. GENTZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean it shows major project expenses next
to these figures so . . .
MS. GENTZ: I could explain that a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
expenses.

Oh.

I see.

Okay.

I see.

Estimated

MS. GENTZ: So on the left hand side that's -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. GENTZ: --where the funds are coming from and on the right side is the
expenses.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. GENTZ: And so they don't necessarily match up where the funds are
coming from -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. GENTZ: --and what the expenses are. So the landscaping is $17,600.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. That's much better. Okay. So is
there any opportunity to make any changes to any of this? This reso? I
mean is this as Ms. Johnson said we can't make any changes?
MS. GENTZ: As far as the projects, the projects have gone through the, the
public process and so changes cannot be made to the projects. Other
changes can be made to the resolution but the projects cannot be changed
because that would change the integrity of the system that was established.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Maybe I should ask this of Corporation
Counsel. Based on the posting of the agenda -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the Committee may consider whether to
recommend adoption of the proposed resolution with or without revisions.
So it, does this body have the opportunity to make any revisions? And,
and I don't mean, excuse me, I don't mean revisions to changing amounts,
you know, that you've already gone through that process and presented
these to us. But if we wanted to eliminate one of the projects and allow
the alternate projects to be used is there a way we could do that?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: There are two issues at stake with regards to
revisions. The first one that you mentioned has to do with the notice on
the agenda. Pursuant to that this body is able to make revisions because
it's been properly noticed that that might be a possibility for this
Committee. There's a second issue that's completely separate from the
notice and agenda which is the CDBG requirements, which is what Carol
mentioned earlier. There's a, a few years ago the CDBG office underwent
a new process which was recommended by HUD where it's a much more
complicated process than it used to be but it goes through various steps,
you know, a committee does an evaluation and there's notices that go out
to the public et cetera.
So as Carol mentioned there's a process and an integrity in that process
that needs to be preserved. So depending on the, the extent of the
revisions, for example this Committee could make revisions to say the
scope of the project, you know, if you needed to revise the scopes a little
bit that's fine and we've done that before if you recall. But what she's
saying is that if you were to completely remove, oops, sorry, if you were
to completely remove a project that would trigger the process all over
again. And we've, and we've also had that discussion where if you made
that type of substantial change where you were to remove a project from
consideration at this point it would restart the whole CDBG process over
agaIn.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For everybody concerned?
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MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: I believe it just starts from the very beginning right,
the whole note, all the notices, everything has to be done over again.
Because it, this goes, this, this, the process that the CDBG office goes
through, you come out with a proposal as a package.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they score things and that's how we
got -MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --items in this column and then items as
alternatives, is that right?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it's like we couldn't take an alternative
and switch it with one of the others without starting the whole process
over?
MS. GENTZ: That's correct, because the purpose of the alternates is so that if
funds become available from a project doesn't move forward or is under
budget that they're ready and we're able to utilize the funds as quickly as
possible so we can meet timeliness. But if you were to delete a project
and move another project in there that would, you know, change the, the
integrity of the process and that would be an issue from HUD's
standpoint.
And also just to remind the Committee also the
recommendation was a result of a Council audit of the program at that
time that we came up with this process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Of the CDBG program?
MS. GENTZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Thank you, Chair.

Yeah.

Okay.

Thank you very much.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I'd like to continue
on, on that same thought. Then if we were to look at a specific project,
especially, you know, the one we're just talking about where there really
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are no additional secured funds so could the project come with some kind
of a condition that you don't get the County funds until you provide
verification of the additional funds? Because in fact it will put the
300,000 in limbo which could be reprogrammed to somebody else but it
just seems like there are no firm commitments to the additional funds at
this point. So what are we funding if we cannot assist the program to
complete their project?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ms. Gentz.
MS. GENTZ: Thank you. There are a number of stipulations that the project will
have to go through in order to move forward. So I don't know that you
would necessarily need to put some type of provision because they
couldn't go out for bid. It's just like this other project I was talking about
when, who did go out to bid and it was 200, it was twice as much as they
thought it would be. So we haven't invested any of the, the CDBG funds
until they either change the scope of their project or get the additional
funding. So I don't know that the Council really needs to put any type of
provision on, on any of these projects, Hana Health or other ones that may
not have fully funding at this point. I mean the same issue is with the
Lanai Health Center, they do not at this point have all of their funding
either.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chairman.

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you,

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So, may I direct this
question to Corporation Counsel?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So what you're
saying about the question about what the agenda says about revisions is
that you're saying that the CDBG program supersedes agenda
stipulations?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, no, I'm saying that there are instances
where revisions can be done pursuant to both requirements. I mean
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there's, there's two separate requirements and one of them is the notice
and agenda requirements and the other one is CDBG requirements. The
notice and agenda requirements just require that the Council anticipate
action that it may take which is what's currently in your agenda. But there
are also other additional requirements and in this case it's their CDBG
program requirements that restrict the extent of revisions that can be made.
So for example if this Committee wanted to make revisions on a particular
scope of a program, you could do that, under both provisions, under the
notice and agenda provisions as well as the CDBG provisions. But there
are, may be some other revisions that are too, that are too much of a
change, I guess that would be prohibited under the CDBG requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. So as, as, you know, mentioned in the
agenda to recommend adoption of the proposed resolution with or without
revisions. So, so revisions you talking about on the resolution would have
to do with everything else except what's the CDBG program parameters
are? Because you said we can't do anything about the CDBG, you know,
program.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah. Basically I'm saying that the Committee
would need to comply with both, both sets of rules.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So the revisions are limited to just
certain things we could do?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And also maybe for Corp. Counsel, I
think one of the other Members raised it and I'm not sure who it was or if
it was Member Anderson. But how are we to approve funding for a
project without proper zoning yet? What happens to the money? If it gets
funded and then the zoning doesn't get approved?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Maybe Carol can answer that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department?
MS. GENTZ: And this might be a question for the applicant. But my
understanding is for the nutrition center itself they don't need rezoning of
that part of the larger plans that they have for the parcel. And like I said
maybe the applicant can confirm that. But my understanding is they don't
need rezoning, they do need a permit and on their application they
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indicated that they would be securing their permit by, I believe it was May
of '08. So based on that we thought that the project would be moving
forward in a timely manner.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So maybe we do, you know, we can
ask the applicant regarding that. But correct me if I'm wrong, but the
funding I think we heard from you before is for a funding period of five
years, is that correct? That they have to complete the project and utilize
the funding within five years?
MS. GENTZ: Well technically it's supposed to be spent within 12 months.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. GENTZ: But we often have projects that, five years is the uppermost limit.
So it's not unusual for a project to extend their agreement for greater than
one year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay.
And finally, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Gentz, are you aware if, you know, funding from the County, like we
have heard from many nonprofits in this particular application is used to
leverage other funding?
MS. GENTZ: I'm sorry, could you repeat the question?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Does the funding that comes from CDBG be
used by the applicant to leverage other funding?
MS. GENTZ: Yes, that's often the case. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

Thank you, Ms. Gentz.

Mahalo,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
questions for Ms. Gentz? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. So, Ms. Gentz, have,
have you addressed any of the concerns that Mr. Blumer-Buell brought up
in regards to the Hana Health and nutrition center?
MS. GENTZ: The two concerns he had about the membership of the board and it
being a community organization were issues that were raised in the
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application from 2004. And at that point we along with consultation with
HUD looked into the matter and it was determined that they were a, you
know, a established nonprofit and they're in good standing with the State
and so that it was not an issue. And unless there is additional information
for us to consider we would, we based our decision this year on, on what
was determined in the application from 2004.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And so the provisions in Act 263
don't necessarily comply to this anymore?
MS. GENTZ: Well I, 1-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Complies?
MS. GENTZ: --yeah, I'm not familiar with that act. And so what we looked at,
when we get an application we look and see if it is a established nonprofit,
it's incorporated, it has its 501(c)(3), it has been filing tax returns, that
type of thing. And so there wasn't, so it's not within the CDBG
regulations to question or to determine whether they should change their
board mix and how they're organized. We looked at what was presented
to us, it was a legitimate nonprofit and so we funded it based on that. And
like I said these issues were raised in 2004 and it was in consultation with
HUD it was determined not to be an issue at that point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
either --

But HUD wasn't involved

III

Act 263

MS. GENTZ: But ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and, and, and I mean, from what I'm
understanding and I could be wrong, that's why I'm asking. That it was
Act 263 that initiated the health center and the Ho'o Ku'i Kahi
organization for the health center. So it seems like it's moved away from
that and members of the community are upset about the fact that they're
being left out, so, of this community center, health center. So I'm just
wondering if that was ever brought under consideration.
MS. GENTZ: Well it's, from a CDBG point of view we didn't evaluate whether,
we evaluated it as a legitimate nonprofit. We didn't need to evaluate
whether it was in compliance with the State statute that was--I'm not
familiar with the State statue but it was, we evaluated this applicant along
with all the other applicants that it was a legitimate nonprofit.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then you did say that they need
a permit? What kind of permit do they need?
MS. GENTZ: They need a building permit for construction of the, the center.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and then I guess for Corp. Counsel,
you mentioned that based on the language in the agenda and I guess from
past experience that the body could change the scope of a project without
affecting the whole CDBG program and causing it to go back to square
one, is that correct?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Right. In the past we have amended the scopes of
projects.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And when you say that specifically could
you give us a, like a example?
MS. GENTZ: There's an example of something we need to do today. On the, the
Molokai community service, in the resolution is, indicates it's an infant
and toddler childcare facility. And it needs to be changed to a preschool
facility. So that type of thing, that is an example that I'm aware of.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so that necessarily changes the scope
from infant to toddler to preschool.
MS. GENTZ: It ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Without changing the money.
MS. GENTZ: Yeah. It clarifies the scope.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And just for clarification
from Ms. Gentz. Then with the introduction of the alternates that we now
list, prior to that introduction we could make changes on CDBGs listings?
Is that correct?
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MS. GENTZ: I don't know that that's correct. I mean we, my understanding is
four or five years, or five years ago when there wasn't a clear process that
this process was established and at that point there could no longer be
changes by the Council to the funding recommendations without startin~
the process all over again. And also complying with the May 1St
deadline. The alternates were a later recommendation of HUD so that we
had approved projects ready to go if funding became available from a
project that didn't move forward or came in under budget. So those are
two separate issues too.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. I don't know how to separate them
because if you look at what one particular organization might need in
terms of say go back to the one you were talking about to get their permit
to actually build, what we're actually looking at is a soft copy or a soft
number of what their actual construction need is because, you know, I
don't know how long bids are good for. You know, so you're looking at
something that's not tangible so that's subject to change. So when they
come to, you know, if we're going to say we're going to allow it to happen
and we approve it and they get "x" amount of dollars and then their bids
come in and it's two times that cost, where do you get money from to
help, you know, cover the initiation of this project?
MS. GENTZ: Are you talking about the other project that, where their bids came
in twice as much?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well I'm just using that as an example.
MS. GENTZ: An example.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MS. GENTZ: Well it would, it's the responsibility of the agency to come up with
the additional funding. They can come to us and ask if we have funds
available, we would consider their appl ... , their request. You know, in
this particular example that I was using a current project we don't have
$1 million in reprogramming funds. But we would certainly entertain
requests to keep projects moving as much as we're able to. So in this
particular case the example I used where it came in twice as much for the
bid is that they, that project is currently on hold and they are currently
fundraising. We are also in discussions with them about the possibility of
either phasing their project or reducing their scope so that they could move
the projects along with the funds that they have available. So this would
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be similar in this case with Hana Health as an example, if they were not
able to secure anymore funding then we would have to sit down and say,
okay is it still a viable project and what are our options. And if they, you
know, worse case scenario if they weren't able to raise additional funds
then that, their request for 300,000 would be available to reprogram to
other projects.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So but for us at this point because of the
change in HUD' s requirements and because we have elected to add
alternate projects to our listings then there is no other recourse by us
accepting all or nothing. So even if we drop the concept of adding on
alternate projects at this point, we still would not have the opportunity to
be able to selectively elect those projects that we feel should be moving
forward because ofHUD's requirements?
MS. GENTZ: That is correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
makes no difference?

So whether we drop the alternates or not it

MS. GENTZ: Right. The alternates there again are there not because, not so that
you could select one of them to move it forward but so that we had
projects available if additional funding became available. And I'd also
like to add that the projects were, you know, rated and ranked according to
several different, as I mentioned, several different criteria. The alternate
projects were ranked lower because either they, they weren't currently a
high, as high a priority as the projects above them or they might not be
project ready as much as the projects above them. So based on the criteria
this is how we've ranked them and this is what our recommendation to the
Committee is today.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Carol. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So to sum the, sum up this situation it sounds to
me like we have a, two, couple choices. One is to approve the proposal
and the other is not to approve your proposal. If we don't approve the
proposal we essentially lose out a little more than $2 million worth of
Federal funds. I think that helps me make a decision, I don't like losing
money. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, for my second
opportunity here. It was brought to our attention, Ms. Gentz, and I'm not
sure if your review process takes into account this. But it was brought to
our attention, you know, by Mr. Blumer-Buell from Hana that the project
in its entirety, its totality which is proposed at $26 to $52 million is, does
not have the required zoning. So the zoning requests have been, you
know, transferred to the Land Use Committee which hasn't acted on this
application. So where does that stand in your process that it apparently
does not have the zoning for the entire project which I'm not sure if this is
a part of the entire project, you know, or not. Does that come under your
purview or your review?
MS. GENTZ: We wouldn't evaluate the entire project. We're just evaluating the
portion that they have applied for CDBG funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, yeah, and in your review of that
portion does your review include whether they have proper zoning?
MS. GENTZ: My understanding for the nutrition center is that they have the
appropriate zoning to go ahead with the nutrition center. And again
maybe the applicant could clarify that for you but that is my
understanding. So we would look into that, if I could use another project
for an example. The preschool, the application from the Molokai
Community Service Council, they're in a SMA, the, the land that they
have acquired and proposed to build on. They're in an SMA, I believe
they're going to need rezoning too of the parcel. So that is why they
ranked lower because we didn't feel that they would reasonably be able to
start construction within a year. And in addition that project, we are
funding them for planning and design, they haven't started their planning
and design ... (end of tape 3A) . .. but because we took those things into
consideration that they're not as project ready as the projects above them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And finally, Mr. Chairman, there's a
letter enclosed with Mr. Blumer-Buell's packet to us and it's a letter from
the Mayor dated February 14, 2008 which is, you know, less than a month
ago. And she says in her letter and I quote, "Once I have had the
opportunity to assess the information we will take action as appropriate."
Have you heard from Mayor on this?
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MS. GENTZ: I'm working with the Mayor on developing the response to
Mr. Blumer-Buell.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So do you think it's appropriate for us to act
on this without hearing from the Mayor?
MS. GENTZ: We have, she was aware and she's, she's approved the funding
recommendation. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Did she approve
recommendation prior to her February 14, 2008 letter?

the

funding

MS. GENTZ: Yes, she did and ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
So this seems to be a more recent
correspondence and communication on this particular project?
MS. GENTZ: And at that time we received a letter from Mr. Blumer-Buell after
that time, after we submitted the funding recommendations and received
the approval from the Mayor and we were in discussion with the Mayor at
that time as to whether we should start the process over at that point or
move forward with it and at that point ... okay. And whether we should
move forward and then she also signed the transmittal of the resolution
with the Hana Health project in there on February 25 th so that was
subsequent to the letter of the 14th.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Ms. Gentz, thank you for, you know,
your response. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Carol, thanks very much and I, I
apologize for not being here for all the questions. But I just, I, when I was
dialoging with Mr. Blumer-Buell I said that I would just verify that my
understanding was correct. That we are not to be pulling and picking and
doing all of this other stuff with regard to the projects, it's basically
you've done your due diligence, this is the proposal and anything that we
do to tinker with it would possibly be seen as inappropriate by the
reviewing agency, is that correct?
MS. GENTZ: That's correct and we would, you either approve the entire
resolution or not approve it and if you do not approve it we have to start
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the process over again and risk not meeting our May 15th deadline to HUD
and risk the $2 million in funding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that's what happened before.
And with regard to the actual posting that was referenced to the verbiage,
that basically in my opinion was if there was maybe a little correction or
some other alteration that was nonsubstantive in nature that would be
okay. But not actually just removing a project and then inserting
something else?
MS. GENTZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just one more quick thing I'd like to make clear.
Should we approve the package and later on there is some wrinkle that
comes up in regard to zoning or a lack of matching money or whatever it
is. The worst case would be that the project would then not be funded and
the $300,000 would go back for reprogramming?
MS. GENTZ: That's correct. And, and to remind the Committee the funding is a
reimbursement, so the money does not leave the US Treasury until we
draw it down based on a verified reimbursement and a request for
reimbursement from the sub-recipient.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But we would still get the $2 million and really
the thing at risk is the 300,000. So I think that kind of clears it. I would
rather that, you know, if we're going to lose the whole thing we fund it
and then continue to, you will continue to work with this and if it looks
like there's a problem then we can always reprogram the 300,000.
MS. GENTZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Just as a
FYI to the Committee why the Land Use Committee has not acted on this
particular matter as it relates to zoning was because of some of the
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concerns that have been brought about in the community with regards to
this matter. Upon conferring with the area representative Mr. Medeiros it
was basically, I worked this out with Mr. Medeiros until everything can be
smoothed out and, you know, rather than just take up the zoning issue and,
you know, some problems that have not been addressed yet, you know,
surface in the Committee meeting. I think it's better that we I guess
hooponopono, let the community get together work out the issues and the
details and then we can bring this matter to the Land Use Committee for
rezoning of the whole project itself.
So I just wanted, didn't want to leave the public with the impression that
the Land Use Committee was just setting this thing off on the side and
trying to bury it. So, you know, it was my intent initially to actually have
this matter heard late last year. So until it was brought to my attention that
there were some concerns, you know, with the, with this particular Hana
Health Center. So that is why as my decision as Chair was to let
Mr. Medeiros, you know, talk story with the community and once
everything is all settled and, you know, agreed upon I guess or people can
live with some of the decisions they make then I would be more than
happy to bring this matter to the Land Use Committee for consideration
for rezoning. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, at this time if there's no
objections the Chair would like to make a recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. You know, some of the
testimony deferred our questions to the executive director. Is there going
to be an opportunity and even Ms. Gentz, you know, said to direct some of
those questions to the executive director. Where would there be an
opportunity for that as a resource person?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I can call the executive director to answer that question.
But I think there is safeguards that already in place where if Ms. Gentz
sees that, you know, they haven't got the right zoning or, or some pieces
are missing that, that money will never leave the CDBG office. But I can
call the executive director to provide you with that kind information. So
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as far as the Chair is concerned, you know, I do believe that the CDBG
program have enough safeguard such that, you know, Ms. Gentz will have
that opportunity to redirect that money if the case may be. So, at this time
the Chair would like to call on the executive director to provide us with
some comments or to answer Member Medeiros' questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And if you can identify yourself and the organization
that you represent.
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Yes. I'm Cheryl Vasconcellos the executive director of
Hana Health. Good afternoon.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good afternoon. Member Medeiros, if you can your
question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
And,
Ms. Vasconcellos, thank you for being here. One of the contentions in the
community that keeps coming up and which seems to raise questions and
concerns is that the community doesn't feel that it can participate anymore
in the Hana Health organization. One of the questions raised in the
community is why aren't the board meetings open to the community.
MS. VASCONCELLOS: The board meetings are conducted in accordance with
State law. We've had other opportunities that we provide for the
community to give their input. We do have community meetings, we do,
do community needs assessments and polling to determine what the needs
and concerns of the community are. We do have suggestion boxes, we do
talk story with community members both informally and through formal
process of focus groups and other needs assessments. So the board
meetings per say are not open to the public but the board does address the
concerns of the community.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
County funds --

So as a recipient of Federal, State and

MS. VASCONCELLOS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --what do you, what State law do you cite
that requires you not to open your board meetings?
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MS. VASCONCELLOS: I have a certificate with me of good standing from
Department of Consumer Affairs, State Department of Consumer Affairs
which indicates that we are in compliance with all State law.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Including not having open board meetings?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Wouldn't you think that, that would
help encourage more understanding of what you're trying to do if you
would allow open board meetings?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: I think we've had numerous community meetings
where we have hashed out all of the issues including the zoning issue
which still has not come before the Land Use Committee or the County
Council. That involved a series of community meetings in Hana where
the entire community had an opportunity to view the project, provide their
input, tear it apart and that went on for about a year and a half at which
point the plans that were originally put together based on community's
needs and wishes were revised and made somewhat smaller to meet the
concerns that the community brought up through those meetings. That
went, that was a series of three meetings in Hana just about this project. It
then moved forward to the Maui Land Use Commission I believe who also
held a public hearing where people were given the opportunity to address
this project as well as the larger wellness center concept. And we also
were approved through the commission at which point the zoning issue
was moved to the County Council where it stalled for about 18 months.
So I believe that we have participated with the community, we've had a lot
of dialogue with the community about this project and we have, from the
very beginning this project is the result of community issues, concerns,
ideas, needs, that's where the project came from, it did not come from the
board of directors or from the staff. The proj ect is the result of the
community's input into what they wanted to see in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I wanted to ask you, you know,
initially that medical facility started off I believe as the Hana Community
Medical Center and then the name evolved down to just Hana Health. Can
you explain to us why the change in the name where it didn't include the
community anymore?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Well I'd like to go back actually to Act 263 which
transferred the State Health Center to a private nonprofit corporation.
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That has been litigated all the way to the State Supreme Court and in fact
that statute transferred the State Health Center to the private nonprofit
corporation, it did not transfer the Health Center to the community. Again
that's been litigated all the way to the State Supreme Court and we were
successful in that case. We decided to change the name from Hana
Community Health Center to Hana Health based on what a number of
Federally qualified community health centers were calling themselves, as
well as we felt that it better represented the entire district of Hana and the
full scope of services that we were providing. Because we're not just a
health center, we also provide lots of other kinds of services.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And finally, Ms. Vasconcellos, I
wanted to ask you that you as the executive director, would you be open to
allowing the community or government to, you know, review your
operations or your records?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: The government regularly reviews our operations and
all of our funding sources review our, all of our operations, they review all
of our financial statements, they review all of our programs and so we are
reviewed regularly by every funding source that we are receiving money
from.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so you provide an audit to your funding
sources?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And is that, are those audit records available
for community or public review?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: They are included in the application to CDBG.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you, Ms. Vasconcellos,
for your responses. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros.
Anderson, you had a question?

I think, Member

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well I think Member Medeiros covered
most of it. But is there any reason why the board changed from a
community elected board to a self elected board?
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MS. VASCONCELLOS: Well it's not self selected, there's a nominating process,
but yes it was based on legal opinion that this happened because we had
been sued by two unions at the point of the privatization and there was a
lot of concern about the community elected membership. So based on our
legal counsel we were told that it was best to move in this direction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And your legal counsel at the time the
board was still a community elected board?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so was the community involved in that
at all?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: They were not involved in that decision. The board of
directors had the authority based on the bylaws to make that decision. So
we were in compliance with the bylaws at the time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So back to the project specifically.
You know, when you read the summary of your application it speaks more
to the effect that this would be a training center for micro-enterprise
development.
MS. VASCONCELLOS: That's only one component of the project. The primary
component is the health and wellness piece of it. We're currently
providing meals to 100 kupuna in the Hana district, we are servicing 400
Hana school children. We have a chronic disease management program
that serves anywhere between 15 and 25 people per session. We have ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And all of that will be serviced out of the
nutrition center?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: All of it will be serviced out of the nutrition center.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any more
questions for the executive director? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just one final
So on the concern or the raising of the issue by
question.
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Mr. Blumer-Buell that you have not gotten your zoning yet, what is the
response to that?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: We have not gotten through the zoning process for the
entire Wellness Village project, but we do have the right to apply for a
building permit for pieces of the project. And in this case the nutrition
center does fit within the current zoning, it does not require a zone change,
it fits within the current zoning of the first two acres of property.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. So your current kitchen facilities now
exist in one of the resident structures on the property?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Correct. Yes. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And you did mention that you've,
you're a private nonprofit -MS. VASCONCELLOS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --but you do exist on government property?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So, do you think there's a fiduciary
responsibility to the community to make it a more open organization for
them to scrutinize?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: I believe we are a very open organization, and as I said
we do regular meetings, we have newsletters, we have fliers, there's
nothing going on behind closed doors that the community is not aware of.
We are probably more open than any community organization in Hana or
the State for that matter just based on the controversy that resulted from
the privatization. So I feel very comfortable that we are really an open
book and we've presented all of the information we have just as part of the
application, which is public information. So there's nothing that's being
hidden.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the totality of the project, which is the
whole project you're, you're waiting for zoning on that?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: For the entire project we're waiting for zoning, but I
believe Councilman Anderson has a very dated plan, that has been
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downsized as a result of the Hana Advisory Committee meetings that took
place over the year and a half period. So it's a smaller project in order to
move other components of the project forward. Like senior housing for
example we would need to have the zone changed.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's my understanding and you may have
done it already and you can tell me if you did so. So on your application
for the entire project -MS. VASCONCELLOS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --did that trigger an EA?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: We've already done two EAs and a Federal EA.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And in the EAs did it include this
nutrition center?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Yes, it did.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you, Ms. Vasconcellos.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one quick question as a follow up. So
what is the zoning currently where the nutrition center will be?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Interim.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Interim? You can't build on interim.
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Well we, we can have accessory uses and it also allows
you to have any facility that is agricultural related and because of the Hana
Fresh Farm and we use all of our produce in the kitchen it is acceptable
use.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: According to?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: According to the law, according to the statue.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Well,
interpretation? Who told you it was okay?

but

according

to

whose

MS. VASCONCELLOS: That would be our architect and our attorney.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And your attorney is?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Burke Sakai.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so nobody in the Planning Department
said it was okay? I mean have you checked ...
MS. VASCONCELLOS: We're going through the, yeah, and we actually sat
down with the Planning Department about year and a half ago and they
helped us to look at the setback requirements and all of that based on the
zoning that we had.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so where is the Maui or the Hana Fresh
Farm or whatever you're calling it?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: It's on, part of the acreage that we presently have.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Within this project area?
MS. VASCONCELLOS: Within, well it's actually most of the project area, it's
the whole, there are six acres in the back that are currently under farm.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
executive director? If not, thank you very much, Ms. Vasconcellos -MS. VASCONCELLOS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for answering those questions. At this time, if there's
no objections the Chair would like to do his recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendations.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. At this time the Chair recommend that we
adopt the proposed resolution and to file the County communication.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Molina. Anymore discussion? All in favor of the motion ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Are you going to do an amendment to revise the title of one of
the alternate projects that was being, that was brought up by the CDBG
manager?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you for bringing that out. Members, on the
proposed resolution, let's see, on the last page, before the Chair makes an
amendment on this the Chair would like to call a short recess to confer
with Staff as well as Ms. Gentz on the wording in regards to the Molokai
Community Service Council project. So at this time the meeting is in
recess, short recess, so no, no run away .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:48 p.m.
4:50 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Thank you, Members, for that short
recess. At this time the Chair would like to make an amendment and the
amendment is on the last page, item NO.4. The Chair would like to
amend or recommend an amendment to remove "an infant and toddler
childcare" and in its place insert "a preschool". So, Mr. Taguchi, can you
read the, the new amendment for item NO.4?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, the second to the last page of the proposed
resolution in item NO.4 under the Molokai Community Service Council
project not Na Kamalii Hoaloha Preschool. The, the recommended
amendment would be to delete "an infant and toddler childcare", delete
those words and enter and substitute, "a preschool". So the sentence
would read, "New construction of a preschool facility on the island of
Molokai and environmental review requirements." That would be the
recommending amendment.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The Chair is open for a motion to ...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Moved by Member Baisa, second by Member
Victorino. Members, any discussion on the amendment? Seeing none, all
in favor of the amendment please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any nays? Seeing no nays, eight ayes and
one excused.
VOTE:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Vice-Chair Hokama.

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Before we go back to the main motion the Chair would
like to request the Members if there are any non-substantive changes that
you would allow the Chair to work with Staff to do that non-substantive
changes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Back to the main motion as amended. At
this time I would like to call on Member Medeiros for ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And I think
we're at the point that we're going to be voting on this, is that correct?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I just
wanted to say that I certainly going to have to vote in support of the
resolution for the reason that the mechanism we have is either vote yes for
all or if you vote no then all of it fails. And I was hoping there would be a
provision or a mechanism for us to separate one of the applications so that
we could resolve some of the issues and concerns raised in this meeting.
But since we can't do that and I certainly don't want to lose the funding
for the Keanae water tank or the Hana fire truck tanker, I will be voting in
support of this but with certainly with lots of reservations. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
discussion on the main motion at this time? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I also will be voting in support of the
resolution with reservations, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion, Members? All in
favor of the main motion please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nays? Seeing none, motion is carried. Eight ayes, one
excused. Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Molina, Victorino, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Vice-Chair Hokama.

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of revised proposed
FILING of communication by c.R.

resolution;

and

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much, Ms. Gentz, for being here. And
thank you all of those that came from Hana as well as the Fire Department
as well the Maui Economic Concerns of Community for being here this
afternoon.
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ITEM NO. 97:

AMENDING THE FY 2008 BUDGET (DEPARTMENT
OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT) (c.e. No. 08-58)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So our next item, Members, is BF-97. Members, BF-97
is amending the Fiscal Year 2008 Budget, Department of Environmental
Management. The purpose of the proposed bill addresses the potential
shortfall in revenues collected from the residential refuse collection and
landfill fees. Pursuant to Section 9-10 of the Charter of the County of
Maui it states, "If at any time during the fiscal year it appears probable to
the Mayor that the revenues available will be insufficient to meet the
amount appropriated the Mayor shall report to the Council without delay
indicating the estimated amount of the deficit. In this situation there is an
anticipated reduction of revenue in the amount of $3.8 million.
Certification of additional revenues for Fiscal Year 2008 is attached."
And, Members, at this time the Chair would like to call on Mr. Kalbert
Young for some opening comments.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, and, Members. The
proposed bill you have before you is related to a proposed budget
amendment that is related to a projection of anticipated revenues for Fiscal
Year 2008 in the Solid Waste Division of the Department of
Environmental Management. At the halfway point of this fiscal year as of
December 31,2007 and through the month of January 31,2008 evaluation
of the revenue stream that was projected for Fiscal Year 2008 in the Solid
Waste Division was conducted as part of the anticipated fiscal '09 budget
construction. As a result of that review it became apparent that revenue
collection in the Solid Waste Division was below the trend for Fiscal Year
2008 and the Administration has determined that this has warranted a
likelihood of a revenue shortfall based on the Fiscal Year 2008 proposed
budget.
Therefore the Administration is hereby notifying the Council of this
revenue, of this potential revenue shortfall as well as an accompanying
budget amendment to address the necessary revisions to accommodate the
shortfall in the Fiscal Year '08 Budget. As well as the recommendations
for this budget amendment so that the operations of the Solid Waste
Division are not impeded. With, for the Administration today is Director
Okuma, and Solid Waste Division Chief Tracy Takamine who can answer
any technical issue you have related to operations. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
statements?

Thank you.

Ms. Okuma, do you have any opening

MS. OKUMA: Yes. I'd like to just generally point out some things in terms of
the situation. But first of all the revenue projections for landfill collection
actually have turned out to be below the actuals. And one of the things
we'd like to point out is that just prior to the construction of the Fiscal
Year 2008 Solid Waste budget, the Division began pulling its tonnage
information into a more useable form so that it's better able to track the
actual numbers from month to month and then on an annual basis. The
projections for Fiscal Year 2008 were based on data that was actually
prior, collected prior to this tracking system. And this data showed that
actual tonnages were higher than what the actual tonnages are coming in
currently. So it appears that the tonnage over time has actually decreased
and I know that Tracy can give you more specifics on that.
The second thing that I would like to just point out is that revenue
projections for refuse collections is not really that far off from the actuals.
It's not reflected perhaps because of what the books show in terms of
customer payments that came in during a period of time from May through
June of 2007. The payments that came in during this period of time were
actually due July 1 of 2007 which is the first half of the fiscal year. And
basically what happened is these customers once they got their billing
payment in May just paid ... (end of tape 3B). .. What happened is these
deposits were actually deposited and reflected in the 2007 account and not
in the 2007 account. And I know that Kalbert can perhaps better explain
this in the context of the carryover issue. The Department has addressed
the situation so that this year amounts that are paid for Fiscal Year 2009
service will be reflected in the 2009 fund so that we will hopefully not
have this situation in the future. Thank you. And we're here to answer
any questions you may have.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for
Mr. Young or -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for Ms. Okuma? Member Victorino-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I guess the question I have for
this is you mentioned something about accounting and payment and
maybe you'd like to explain that a little bit more, Mr. Young, so I can
have a clear understanding in what you're referring to.
MR. YOUNG: Certainly, I'll, I'll try and be as simple as possible. But basically
what Director Okuma has related to is, is that billing for home refuse
collection is sent out twice a year. The first, for, the first payment of the
year, so say for Fiscal Year 2008 which starts in July of 2007. That bill is
actually sent out in the prior fiscal year, in May, around May, June of
2007. So it's sent out ahead of the fiscal year beginning. Typically
there's a lot of people that as soon as they get their bills they remit
payment and they may remit payment prior to the start of the fiscal year.
So in other words they send in their payment before service for that
payment has actually begun. What happens is if those funds are deposited
into the account as collection of Solid Waste revenues for home refuse
collection, it could be deposited into the account for the year it was
collected and not for the year in which the service is to be rendered. And
that apparently has been the case for home refuse collection.
We did take a look at the collection for home refuse revenues, I'm going
to refer to the Finance Director's quarterly report that is as of or through
June 30,2007. And I trust that none of the Members have that present but
I'll read from it. This report shows that in Fiscal Year 2007 at the end of
the fiscal year, the amount for refuse collection was, in Fiscal Year '07
was budgeted at 3,260,000. On June 30, 2007 the amount actually
collected for home refuse collection was 4,131,643 a difference of, an over
collection of $871,643. Basically this means that they collected more
revenue than was budgeted. We surmised that the reason for that is
actually that payments for Fiscal Year '08 service were actually remitted
in '07 and booked as '07 revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So simply said, if! sent my bill in on, I sent
my $144 June 15 th , got there June 20th , was deposited, it went for the
2006-2007,not2000-2008?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That was simple enough. Okay.
Thank you for that long dissertation, but I just wanted to get that correct.
Now the other question I have in this whole issue is we have and again
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we've known that the storms, the fire and all these other emergencies have
added to it. And I noticed below we're going have some appendix for
emergency funding for that, so that's part it. But how much of the food
waste issue has contributed to this, this, this increase and short ... or it has
no bearing on this?
MS. OKUMA: I don't, I don't, I don't believe that it has any bearing. You know,
this is the food waste that was previously handled by the piggery.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
MS. OKUMA: Is that you're talking about?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. OKUMA: And, and basically that issue is currently being addressed where
there is a Pua [sic} company, Pua [sic} company. Yeah, Pua [sic} Pig
Farms has actually received a grant from our Department to proceed with
the opening of.. .oh I'm sorry Pua'a, Pua'a, of the opening of the piggery.
But I don't, I don't believe that that factors into, into this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so as far as this is concerned it's really a
more of an accounting issue than anything else?
MS. OKUMA: It's, it's a, I think it's the issue that Kalbert has just -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. OKUMA: --discussed plus the fact that on the landfill collection side the
projected tonnage when you compare it to what the actuals have looked
like recently, it's actually decreased. So the projected tonnage way back
when the 2008 Budget was constructed we were looking at higher
tonnage, but what's actually coming in now is lower for reasons I don't
know that we can explain why that is but that's what the data is showing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MR. YOUNG: Just to be the clear the accounting issue only relates to home
refuse collections. It doesn't relate to the landfill revenues. The landfill
revenues is as Ms. Okuma is relaying it's due to the calculated of the
estimated revenue based on tonnage.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So maybe then the question I would have
for Mr. Takamine because you're about the only one that was here in
respect to the tonnage issue. How did we originally estimate and now
come up with less tonnage, which I don't know if that's good or bad?
Maybe you can explain that to, to my, to me.
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. I'll try. Actually it's good based on we're not filling
up the landfill as fast.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's good news.
MR. TAKAMINE: It's bad based on we're not getting the revenue we projected.
This is, this is, I hope explains it. Again as, as Ms. Okuma mentioned,
you know, we're doing better tracking now we, we're actually tracking
every month how much tonnage by category so we know exactly how
much commercial, how much residential. With the new landfill we, we
actually even weigh all the self help, self drop off so those, those bins that
we haul before it gets into landfill we go around, if you've been to the
landfill, around the block and we go across the scale and we actually
measure the tonnage of what's going into landfill. So we have a real
accurate number on, on what's going to the landfill now.
Back in early 2006 when we were putting the '07 - '08 Budget together,
our average daily tonnage at that time was about 650 tons a day which was
pretty high. That comes out to about 122,000 tons per year. So what we
did was we, we used that tonnage and, you know, we, you estimate it's
going to go up for the following year. So we, we estimated that we, we'd
probably be taking 150,000 tons. So we based our budget, our '08 Budget
on 150,000 tons commercial which is at $53 per ton plus $10 surcharge.
However in 2007 we also started restricting C & D waste because the
landfill was filling up faster than we wanted, we're trying to get Phase V
open so we're trying to extend the life of Phase IV.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
understands. What is C & D?

So, Mr. Takamine, just so the public

MR. TAKAMINE: Commer. .. , commer. .. , construction and debri.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: So what we started doing, the landfill staff, they became more
strict as these commercial containers came in and they opened the doors, if
the container was a majority of it was C & D waste we would not allow
them to discharge. Whereas before we'd, we'd just let them come in. So
we started turning away a lot of C & D waste in '07 so that's probably
another factor that, that decreased the tonnage. So the current tonnage
right now is approximately 525 tons per day some, somewhere around
there or about 104,000 tons per year based, instead of the 550,000 [sic}
tons, so we have a decrease, that's where the majority of the decrease is
coming from.
In addition to that we also had our green waste estimate, in '07 we
estimated about 1,841 tons per month which is about 22,000 tons per year.
Oh wait, excuse me. We actually estimated 35,000 tons per year for green
waste. We're currently doing 22,000 tons, what the estimates going to be
to, to the end of the year. So we're short green waste. Some of the factors
there might be last year we increased the per ton cost for green waste, it
went from, I think it was $11 per ton which is a $7 green waste fee plus a
$4 recycle fee to the current rate of $30 per ton which is a $20 per ton
green waste fee plus $10 surcharge. So we might be seeing a decrease
because of the higher cost of green waste.
And when you add those two together the commercial and the green waste
tonnage you also lose, when you lose the commercial and the green waste
tonnage per ton you also lose the recycle fee which is $10. So there's
another portion of our revenue stream that we're not getting. So when you
add those three factors up, the lack of the commercial tonnage, shortage,
the green waste tonnage and the recycle surcharge on the, on both of those
items we're getting the shortage that we're seeing now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Last question, Mr. Chair, and then
I'll let them move on. All this C & D goes to a private landfill right now
from what I understand?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the green waste, it's not ending up in
gulches or anything like that which I had many complaints from
constituents. Where have somewhere else that they're taking this to?
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MR. TAKAMINE: There, there's also another green waste composter behind the
Kihei Wastewater Treatment Plant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct.
MR. TAKAMINE: Which is a private facility and they, when we increased our
rates from 11 to 30 it became comparable to his rates.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. TAKAMINE: So he might be getting more green waste because the cost is
the same, almost the same.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: Whereas in the past when we charge 11 he was charging 30,
of course the, the commercial guys will come to the County. So it might
be, I don't know what his tonnages are or in fact if they've gone up. And I
think also we were high on the green waste estimate when we did it in '07
so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just so long as, you know, the, the
there's some logic behind of it but I'm just making sure that we already
have enough complaints about derelict vehicles and appliances and all
these other stuff being thrown on the side of the road or in the sugar cane
fields. That green waste is not another part of it because in the vigor to get
better return on what we taking in we also turn people off and they go out
and dump it illegally so now we've not accomplished anything and maybe
creating another monster somewhere else. So, just so as long as you feel
comfortable with that, Mr. Takamine, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair,
for this opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. Just a fast question for
Mr. Takamine. I know in the last budget cycle for Lanai, Lanai residents
and their accounts, the second half of the collection was waived so that
added probably to some of your shortfalls. Somewhere like $28,000, am I
right?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Director Young, I
just wanted to get some clarification. Why are refuse, residential refuse
collection statements required to be sent out one year in advance?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Medeiros, they're not sent out one year in advance, they're
sent out in the prior fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. In May?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah. So they're sent out in May ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the next fiscal year starts in July?
MR. YOUNG: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's a year isn't it?
MS. OKUMA: Actually the billing's there are two service periods in, in a year.
The first service period is the first half of the fiscal year which is January
through December. So for that, is that, I'm sorry. July, I'm sorry, July
through December. So for that service period the billings generally go out
around May to give people, to give them like two week notice your bill is
due in July. And then the second service period is the second half of the
fiscal year which would begin from January through June. And for that
period of time the billing actually goes out around OctoberlNovember to
let them know please send your bill in January, it's due January. But, you
know, people sometimes they pay early right, when they get their billing.
But we came into this problem because the problem is May is your prior
fiscal year for a service period that begins your next fiscal year. So that's
where we have the issue is when it's that time frame.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that clarification. So
there's two billings per, per year or per period, fiscal year, whatever you
do it in. So ...
MR. TAKAMINE: Chairman Pontanilla, can I expand on that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Go ahead, Mr. Takamine.
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MR. TAKAMINE: Also by ordinance we, we have, payment is due for service
prior to receiving service. So that's why we always send it out before the
service period begins.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I, I understand that part. But I
thought when the statement was made that it's sent out in May for the next
fiscal year that's a year away but you have two billings. Okay. That, that
clears it up for me. Now part of this is the reduction in funding for the
Hana Landfill scrap metal clean up by $700,000. And that's considered
carryover savings that you're going to be applying somewhere else? Or
where does that 700,000 go?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Medeiros, the shortfall of the overall operations is estimated
to be 3 million ... 3.1 million. In order to accommodate that 3.1 million the
Department is able to scale back the appropriation for that Hana scrap
metal project by 700,000 as part of the overall deficit. I think Director
Okuma, you know, was consulted in terms of that it would not impede this
project or the scope of this work. And the, the Department is probably
more appropriate to further expound on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. My understanding is that, it's just
that the project or the contract came in 700,000 below what was expected
or funded, is that correct?
MS. OKUMA: Basically that's correct. We ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So that $700,000 was extra?
MS.OKUMA: Extra, right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so you're saying that a project that was
funded for $2,200,000 that came in under, or came in at 1,500,000 will
receive the same scope of work?
MS. OKUMA: I'm sorry I didn't hear the last part.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: The same contract that originally was
2,200,000 that came in at 1,500,000, 700,000 less will receive the same
scope of work?
MS. OKUMA: Well basically when the 2 million was appropriated that was
based on our best estimate.

- 92-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 10,2008

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. OKUMA: The bids had not gone out at that point, it's just that I think we
were very fortunate, it was a very competitive bid and we were actually
pleasantly surprised that the bid came in as low, you know, at that, at that
rate. And Tracy has just informed me that actually it came in at about
900 ... some ... 905,000. But basically we had made the determination that
there's about, there's about 700,000 that we will not need for this
particular contract. So we did not have this contract in place, the bid had
not gone out at the time the money was appropriated. All of that happened
subsequently so that was an estimate.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. My, my question is that prior to this
contract there was another contract that did the same kind of work at the
Hana Landfill that was contracted out and never done. So I'm asking is
this the same scope of work that is expected to be done under this
contract?
MR. TAKAMINE: Basically it is, it's contracted to remove all the automobiles,
any scrap metal, propane tanks, batteries, tires from the landfill. So it's
basically the same scope of work, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that. And I also want
to bring up, because, you know, you said that we're receiving less
revenues from residential refuse collection and also from landfill
collections. While we may be the victim of our own success because
we're trying to divert stuff away from the landfill and wasn't this an
expectation that we were gonna get less revenues because we're trying to
recycle more, we're trying to, you know, divert more away from landfills.
Was that projection of less revenues part of your calculations for your
budget request?
MR. TAKAMINE: We have not seen a dramatic increase in, in the recyclables.
We're averaging about 25 percent diversion from the landfill now. So we,
when we did our budget we didn't anticipate having a drastic reduction in
tonnage to landfill based on recycling efforts because we haven't made
any drastic changes in how we've been recycling over the past several
years.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. But under our Solid Waste Resource
Advisory Committee, which Member Victorino and I sit on, and the goals
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and objectives of that Committee is to come up with a comprehensive
solid waste study or report and part of that is to divert more stuff from the
landfill. So part of your budget projections and calculations are going to
include less going to the landfill meaning less revenues?
MR. TAKAMINE: For future activities, yes. You know, if we go to curb side
recycling definitely we're going to see a drastic change in the tonnage
that's going to be taken out of the landfill. So definitely in the future but
for current practice and what's been occurring over this past several years
we didn't, we do not have any, any substantial changes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And finally, Mr. Chairman. And since we
know that now and you were, you may still come up, I mean have the
same cost of operations. How do we make up that loss?
MR. YOUNG: We're looking at each other. Who's, who's the best person to
answer. That's, that is a hard, that's one of the hard questions to answer
each year in the budget and whether it's the Administration, the
Department and the Council. It ultimately is going to come down to rates
and whether you raise rates or create new rates. That's the only way to
recover those costs.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
Waste. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you, Director, and Solid

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. We had a very healthy
discussion this morning regarding water rates. So, Members, any more
questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And, and I know because I go to the
Olowalu Recycling Center that one of the problems that exists is they have
difficulty tracking down, particularly green waste when it's supposed to be
from your own personal use. When they have construction debri, I get
reports from many, many people that say they, people that are doing larger
construction projects farm out smaller unmarked trucks to come through in
a parade and drop off all their construction debri. Is that also one of the
possibilities of why we're not getting the revenues 'cause these guys have
found a little loophole in the way to get their debri without paying?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's definitely a problem. We, we have that at the Central
Maui Landfill also. Ifa vehicle comes in and it's not marked in some way
to identify it as a commercial vehicle, either by license plate or by a name
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on the side of the door we, we cannot stop the individual from, from
discharging or throwing the trash whether it be green waste or C & D
material. We can recommend or we try to encourage them but, but
technically we cannot stop them. And it occurs at Olowalu we know, you
know, because we see, we see cars or the individual there sees the car
come back several times, you know. So we're, we're looking at seeing
how we can address that maybe, maybe taking the license plate number
down and maybe going out and checking his facility out or where he lives
and see if in fact, you know, he's, he's a residential individual. But we
don't have any, any teeth in it to, to stop anybody.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And ...
MR. TAKAMINE: Unless we can prove he's a commercial.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would really, I mean even if it's some kind
of a sting operation or somebody, you know, under a whistleblower law
because several people who work in hardware stores these guys come in
construction, they'll come in, they'll purchase little items and, you know,
they know who's doing projects and who isn't doing projects. But the
conversations have led them to have firsthand knowledge that yes this is
what is going on and the County can't stop you so if these guys are
actually, they're probably receiving compensation 'cause it's gotta be
hauled out by somebody. But if you farm it out to smaller trucks and
people are willing to do it then you just save all those fees and the
taxpayers pay and it doesn't make me happy.
But this conversation that we're having is essentially, you know, the same
one that I had with the people at the hardware, the hardware store, they
said look, you know, we would really like to be able to help in whatever
way we can to bust some of these people because it impacts all of our
bottom line, all of our taxes. So it's, you know, when people say
construction pays its own way, not always. One other question and this is
in regard to, like let's say because there are no fees charged for the landfill
at Olowalu because that's a recycling drop and let's say it's closed for six
weeks and people have to go to the other side to drop their recyclables,
will there be any additional advantage or disadvantage I guess for them
having to travel like, do you have any charges? 'Cause that's the only one
I use, I don't use any other areas. Are there charges that are going to be
applied at any other place where the debri will be taken or do you just
have a mechanism where you verify, you know, that it's not a commercial
hauler?
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MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. I'm not real clear on your question. But there's no
additional charge, and anybody that uses the Olowalu facility it's a, should
be residential. Commercial businesses are not allowed there. So anybody
that has been using Olowalu can continue to go Central Maui with no
additional fees, no charges. If they were, if they were commercial and
somehow they were using it and they're caught at Central Maui of course
we, we either stop them or we have them go across the scale or open an
account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I guess I'm not expressing
myself very well, but what I'm trying to get at is if somebody, you know,
one of these I guess people that are taking their commercial trash, you
know, over to the other side, now if there's a chance that you might be
able if you know that they're doing this since it's going to be closed for
six weeks, is there a chance that you might have an opportunity to--at your
Central Maui, wherever they're taking it--know that individual and
recognize that they've made several trips there?
MR. TAKAMINE: We possibly could because the staff we have at Central Maui
are full time County staff and we have more, more available there. The
individual at Olowalu is under contract -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: --so he is doing it himself, we have one individual there and
he basically is running around collecting used motor oil, signing people in,
operating his backhoe because he has to manipulate the trash to make sure
he maximizes the space in the bin. So he doesn't have as much
opportunity to observe what's coming in. So there might be a possibility
at Central Maui because our attendants there their main purpose is to see
what's coming in so they, they could, you know, be more alert and maybe
catch these guys.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And do we have any, like if somebody
gets caught doing that, like if somebody's fined for doing that, is there a
fine in place?
MS. OKUMA: Right now one of our projects is to go through the ordinance and
the rules and the regs since we've become a new department. And one of
the things I am aware of is I believe that on the, we have some authorities
in terms of being able to enforce. But there's other parts of the rules that
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are not in place for our new department. So just to let you know we will
be looking at our entire legal structure, our ordinance, our rules and our
regulations to see what we need to do to basically indicate that this is a
new department with these various authority. So in short we don't have
the authority to actually go out and fine because some of these things are
in place for us right now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, Mr. Chair, I think that's one
of the reasons why there's no downside to it so when there's no risk
involved and there's no fine imposed I, I would love to see the fines be
able to go and make them substantial so that they can go to offset these
kinds of shortfalls. Because I, I can tell you, you know, people are very
creative in how they circumvent the system. And I would love to see a
fine and I don't know, Mr. Chair, if that's one of the items that we could
actually look at in budget. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members,
any more questions before the Chair makes its recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. At this time the Chair recommend that we
adopt the proposed bill and filing of the County communication.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Medeiros. Members, any more discussion? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Real briefly, Chairman. And this is just a
comment, a personal comment that I hope the Department take kind of
kindly. It's, it's incredible how we now have the opportunity to know
exactly how much tonnage that's coming in to our landfill. Let's hope that
your budget projections will also be indicative of that awareness of exactly
what's coming in. Because coming here and continuously asking for
3-point somewhat million and 2-point somewhat million I think the time
has come for us to put the breaks on. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Members, any more
discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion please say "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any nays? Seeing none, motion is carried with seven
ayes and two excused, Members Molina and Hokama.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Mateo, Medeiros, Victorino, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember
Molina
and
Vice-Chair-Hokama.

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of proposed bill; and FILING of
communication by C.R

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Departments. Members, we're
almost there. The final item this afternoon ...
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla. Are you going to request approval -CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MR. TAGUCHI: --to make any changes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, if there's no objections I request your
approval to revise the proposed bill prior to first reading to incorporate any
pending budget amendments that may be before the Council and make any
non-substantive revisions as required.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Thank you, Staff.
ITEM NO. 98:

AMENDING APPENDIX A OF THE FY 2008 BUDGET
(EMERGENCY FUND) (C.c. No. 08-59)
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, the last item on the agenda this afternoon is
BF-98 amending Appendix A of the Fiscal Year 2008 Budget (Emergency
Fund). The purpose of the proposed bill is to amend Appendix A of the
Fiscal Year 2008 Budget as it pertains to Part II Special Purpose Revenues
- Schedule of Revolving Special Funds by adding a line item in the
Emergency Fund in the amount of $1.7 million for December 2007 storm
damage. The fund would be used to reimburse various departments for
cost relating to the December 2007 storm provided that any monies
received from Federal or State agencies relating to these costs would be
returned to the Emergency Fund. At this time the Chair would like to call
on ... (end of tape 4A) . .. Mayor Tavares to provide some comments.
MAYOR T AV ARES: I'm always volunteering for things I probably shouldn't
volunteer for. But thank you all very much for sticking it out. I know the
afternoon is late. And this is going to be a first for everyone. This is the
use of the Emergency Fund which was set up some years ago, and I was
sitting where Mr. Victorino was sitting when we were having many
discussions about setting up this particular fund. And various Members
have different recollections of what happened at the time. But regardless
of what happened at that time if we just look at the Emergency Fund
Ordinance itself it is written very broadly as to what the fund can be used
for. And I think it was done that way so that a body, such as yourselves,
could then make determinations about how and when this Emergency
Fund could be used. So this is sort of the test case and regardless of how
this turns out we, we, we and you and I and whoever may want to look at
that Emergency Fund to further define and refine the uses of it.
My personal take on it, and it's only my personal take on the Emergency
Fund, I feel it can be used if there's an emergency declared. That's one of
my criteria, and when the paper you just got handed to you is sort of a
time, not timeline, it is a timeline of the December storm. And the two
areas that are highlighted, are highlighted to note when Governor Lingle
signed a declaration of disaster on December ih. And down at the bottom
the last entry, February 6, 2008, is when President Bush signed a Federal
declaration recognizing the December storm as a major disaster and
eligible for FEMA expenses.
The next thing I would like you to take a look at is the transmittal dated
February 14th and the attachment to that transmittal, the very end which
talks about the County of Maui as sort of a table or listing, cost for the
December 2007 storm. Now as you're reading through this and you're
looking at things like oh my gosh, here we got Maui County Civil Defense
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Agency $9,292, well, can't they just absorb that? And you go down
further and there's some other odds and ends. Look at the Fire
Department, overtime $1,126. What needs to be noted here is that these
represent claims for reimbursement from FEMA or from State Civil
Defense. So no matter if the amount is small or big, if it's a qualifying
expense FEMA or State Civil Defense could reimburse us. That's why
it's represented here.
But now I want you to look at some other departments. As part of the
justifications for these is that some departments cannot absorb costs for
emergencies and this is just one, this represents just December. Solid
Waste Environmental Management $280,629; Parks and Recreation
$224,000, almost 225,000; Public Works Highways $543,755; and Water
$472,500. Now these are expenses that we should not expect departments
have enough money in their budget to cover this. I would be concerned if
I were sitting in your seats if a department says aw, no problem, we can
cover this. That means something's wrong with their whole budget.
I think that emergencies are just that, emergencies, you can't plan for
them. They're unbudgeted in each department because it's beyond your
normal operation. Now in the case of the Fire Department I think I'd
asked one year how does the Fire Department figure out how many fires
they're going to fight each year. And what they do is look at averages
over a number of years to get an idea of what might be the demand.
Because we have Summer every year and we have wildfires every year
and then we have the intermittent and other things. So I think Fire
Department has a much better handle on estimating what numbers and,
and what kinds of monies have been used in their funds to fight fires.
Monies that are reimbursed from FEMA and this is only for FEMA
qualified activities. So not everything that we submitted would be
reimbursable and that's not a guarantee. The other thing is that this is
what was submitted at one period in time, there are other reports still
going in with other expenses as they're gathering all the receipts and
things. So this is just a snapshot in time so to speak. The monies from
FEMA and State Civil Defense when they are reimbursed go into the
County's General Fund. They are not reimbursed to each department that
submitted for their expenses. Timing is not predictable, this December
storm was at a point in time and during our fiscal year, Mother Nature
doesn't look at our schedule, she just does her thing. And at the time that
this happened carryover savings in departments were not particularly
available because they're already calculated into the Fiscal '09 Budget.
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Reimbursements may be received in the next fiscal year, just as you heard
this one where people enthusiastically paying their refuse bills ahead of
time were causing a problem 'cause it was in the wrong fiscal year. Well,
we could get reimbursed, you know, in July or August for this storm in
December so it's in another fiscal year. So with, with those kinds of
variables it makes it very difficult for anybody to plan anything. And
that's I think why the Emergency Fund is used, is a useful tool for all of
us. The emergency funds come out of General Fund monies, it gets
appropriated every year by the Council and if we can utilize it, we know
the money's going back to the General Fund when it comes for those
qualifying expenses and there can be just one budget amendment that
transfers the money into, back into the Emergency Fund. So it's much
cleaner and it's much surer. So I know I've done a lot of talking and
hopefully I've covered the main points but if you, certainly if you have
questions or if someone else wants to chirp in, I'm fine with that. Thank
you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions? Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly and I won't belabor the point,
I think you clarified it but just so that I'm perfectly clear on this. Monies
that we may qualify back from the Federal or State Civil Defense would
then go back in the General Fund -MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for which we then could make an
amendment, whatever fiscal year to put it back into the Emergency Fund?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It would not be a problem to do something
of that nature?
MAYOR TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well then I would have no problem with
this 'cause that's what it is here for emergency, it was an emergency fund.
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And that's been brought to my attention by many constituents is like we
have this emergency fund why don't you guys use it to help. Now I can
see where it could go and really help the departments which really help the
public. So I, I have no problem with this. Thank you, rna' am.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. Members, any more
questions for the Mayor?
MAYOR T AV ARES: You know, a question might come up later, Mr. Chair,
later on it might come up about the reimbursements to FEMA. And that if
you got this money sitting that comes to the General Fund, in order for us
to get it back to the departments we would have to do that many more
budget amendments too, that's another humbug thing. And it might be in
the wrong year anyway. So this kind of takes care of it and I, you know,
we need seven votes for this to pass and so if the other Members who
aren't here hopefully I'll have a chance to speak with them that we can
make sure that we, we have enough votes to do it. Or, you know, this is
for naught in other words, we'll get the monies coming back in but what to
do with it afterwards we're going to come down here with many budget
amendments to replace some of those funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. Everybody hands went up.
MAYOR TAV ARES: This is an interesting subj ect.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Madam Mayor, why do we have to have
seven votes?
MAYOR T AV ARES: According to the ordinance it needs a super majority to
approve use of the ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you say that again, I'm sorry, I was
hearing three answers at once.
MAYOR TAVARES: There's a super majority required in the ordinance, seven
votes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In the ordinance.
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MAYOR TAV ARES: In the ordinance, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The ordinance being?
MAYOR TAV ARES: Chapter 3.96 Emergency Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. The Emergency Fund ordinance.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
MAYOR T AV ARES: Appropriations from the fund can be only by not less than
seven Members of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Yeah. It can pass out of Committee with
five votes. But on the Council ...
MAYOR TAVARES : Yeah. Can pass out with five votes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah. And on the Council floor, super majority.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Point of order, sir.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I will have to leave at ten to 6:00 so if you need
me to vote I need to do it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member. .. it's been a long day. Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. No I had the same
question as Member Anderson so thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Mayor? Member Johnson.

Members, any more questions for our
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: When the money comes out of our Emergency
Fund is there a requirement, because I can't remember that part of the
ordinance, is it a requirement to repay the Emergency Fund if it's part of
reimbursement?
MAYOR TAVARES: No. It's not a requirement according to what I read but
I'm not the lawyer so maybe we can let our Corp. Counsel interpret that
part of it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, no there is no such requirement.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And the only reason I ask it,
Mr. Chair, is because I know that this is an unusual thing and we've never,
we've established the fund, we've never taken money out of it. But
usually when you have restricted funds, what ends up happening is, you
know, there's very limited things that you can do with it. So because this
is also a potential for reimbursement, maybe that's something that we
should actually look at in the ordinance itself and be very clear about it.
Because if it's something that's like a temporary removal of money in
order to discharge a responsibility and then you be able to repay it or
whatever portion you're reimbursed, then I think that should maybe be
spelled out in the ordinance but that's for another day.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good point.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more discussion on this item? Seeing
none, at this time the Chair would like to make a recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Chair recommend that we adopt the proposed bill
and filing of the County communication.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So move.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. And, Members, before we take
the vote if there is no objections again the Chair would like to request your
approval to revise the proposed bill prior to first reading to incorporate any
pending budget amendments that may be before the Council and make any
non-substantive revisions as required.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. So all in favor of the motion please say
"aye" .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any nays? Seeing none, motion is carried. Six ayes
with three excused, Member Mateo, Molina and Hokama. Motion is
carried.

VOTE:

Councilmember Anderson, Baisa, Johnson,
Medeiros, Victorino, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Mateo, Molina, and Vice-Chair
Hokama.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of proposed bill; and FILING of
communication by C.R

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, that ends our agenda for tonight.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It's tonight now. And thank you very much, Mayor, for
being here. Appreciate it.
MAYOR TAVARES: .. . (Inaudible} ...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing.. .any announcements of any kind? Seeing
none, this meeting adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

5:43 p.m.

APPROVED:

PH PONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Daniel Schoenbeck
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